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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement
Final Dividend

- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers

20 March 2025

HKO0.45 cent per share
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(both days inclusive)
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- Payment Date

2025 Annual General Meeting

- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers

27 May 2025
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16 May 2025
12 May 2025

(before 4:30 p.m.)
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RESULTS SUMMARY

The board of directors (“Board” or "Directors”) of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (“Company”) presents the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2024 ("Year").

BEEEHFGKEERAR ((HAT) 2EET
(BEg  BF) REARIRERBA
T (478 (ER)) B E2024F12831H LEE
E(TREE) 2 KBRIEEEE -

For the year ended 31 December

Total revenue

A

Gross profit

E#

Adjusted EBITD*
KA EBITD*

Net profit
BFE

#E12A31BLLFE

2023 2024
HK$ million HKS$ million Changes
BEEEAT BREAETRT b= )
4,823 5,230 +8.4%
1,450 1,481 +2.1%
470 433 -7.9%
299 257 -14.0%
HKS3.79 cents -14.0%

Basic earnings per share

SREFEF

HK4.41 cents
4.417381

3.79:%8

* Adjusted EBITD represents earnings before interest, tax and depreciation
charge on the self-owned flagship store, which reflects the Group's core

operating performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

Despite the market uncertainties and weak consumption
sentiment, the Group's total revenue increased by 8.4% to
HK$5,230.3 million (2023: HK$4,823.2 million) during the Year.
Revenue from Hong Kong was up by 16.5% to HK$2,923.2
million (2023: HK$2,510.0 million), accounting for 55.9%
(2023: 52.0%) of the total revenue, and the revenue from
Mainland China was HK$1,350.8 million (2023: HK$1,372.9
million), accounting for 25.8% (2023: 28.5%) of the total
revenue. In terms of revenue by product segment, the revenue
from the watch segment was HK$3,337.3 million (2023:
HK$3,480.4 million), accounting for 63.8% (2023: 72.2%) of the
total revenue, and the revenue from the jewellery segment
increased significantly by 41.0% to HK$1,893.0 million (2023:
HK$1,342.8 million), accounting for 36.2% (2023: 27.8%) of the
total revenue, mainly attributable to the increase in revenue
from gold products.

During the Year, the Group's gross profit was HK$1,480.9
million (2023: HK$1,450.3 million) and the net profit was
HK$256.7 million (2023: HK$299.2 million). Basic earnings per
share was HK3.79 cents (2023: HK4.41 cents). The Group has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK0.45 cent
(2023: HKO.56 cent) per share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK0.65 cent (2023: HKO.76 cent) per share, the
total dividends for the full year are HK1.10 cents (2023: HK1.32
cents) per share.

E H g R am koo A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

& HE S Em koo A

MARKET REVIEW

During the Year, market uncertainties arising from factors such
as geopolitical tensions, global monetary policy and the pace
of United States interest rate cuts continued posing challenges
to the general business environment. Chinese consumer
confidence remained soft due to the volatile stock market and
weakened property market. Hong Kong's retail market was
impacted by the changes in the consumption patterns of
inbound visitors as well as domestic consumers. Given the
strong Hong Kong dollar, more domestic consumers tended to
travel and purchase luxury items outside Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading retailer of European-made
internationally renowned watches, together with jewellery
products under its own brand, "“Emperor Jewellery' The
Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange") since
July 2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has established a retail network across Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland China, Singapore and Malaysia, as well as
several online shopping platforms. With a history of over 80
years, the Group carries a balanced and comprehensive watch
dealership list. The target customers range from middle to high
income groups worldwide. The Group's core strategy focuses
on maintaining its position as the leading watch and jewellery
retailing group in Greater China, coupled with an eye on
expansion beyond the region.

Presence in Prime Retail Locations
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 82 stores in

Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore and Malaysia.
The distribution was as follows:

E H g R am koo A

FEFBZZTERBERETE R PER
#h~ FONR K ERAEE > TFRAE BER L
WFa - XEEERRAOH ZESE T
BMEENERRE - BREZEELBERE
KEHMHNPEFSWAAL « ZEENZOR
B A R 1T H S KR EM & R 23 SR B3k A 3k
BETEEE/MA > FRFBEIRATEL I
& LUER TS o

EEEESTEME
12024128310 » KEBREE ~ B~

FRED A~ R NIR R B AR PE SR B A S H 82
JEE 0 oMl

Number of stores
[EEHg 8

Hong Kong 5B 31
Macau BT 8
Mainland China R[] P 34
Singapore MR

Malaysia B2RAE 02 1
Total e 82

These stores include self-branded "Emperor Jewellery" stores,
dedicated watch boutiques and multi-brand watch stores (with
or without jewellery counters).

Over the years, the Group has built a strategic sales network in
prime shopping areas as well as popular residential districts,
particularly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Within
Mainland China, approximately 75% of its stores are located in
first tier and new first tier cities, aligning with the Group's
customer targeting and market positioning. The Group also
successfully expanded its presence in Singapore and Malaysia,
to enhance its footprint and brand exposure beyond Greater
China.

ZEEHOEEE RS (HEHE) |5 B
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1#) e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

& HE S Em koo A

Solidifying Leading Position in the Watch Industry

With its long-standing history, the Group is a trusted partner of
and maintains solid relationships with major high end luxury
Swiss watch brand suppliers, thereby continuing to hold a
comprehensive portfolio of watch dealerships and maintaining
its leading position, especially in Hong Kong. The Group
leverages its strong customer database to organise unique co-
marketing campaigns and events with the watch brands,
highlighting new products and delivering professional services
and special customer experiences in a personalised way, in
order to understand and engage the customers.

Enhancing the Jewellery Business

The Group offers premium quality "Emperor Jewellery"
products with a dedication to design excellence and
craftsmanship covering diamond and jadeites, fine gold, pearl
and colour stones. "Emperor Jewellery" unveils unique

collections of exquisite designs that embrace and nurture
different clusters of customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The exquisite and fashionable collections such as the "Antique
Gold" and "Dashing Aura" collections, represent a harmonious
fusion of modern elegance and craftsmanship, and capture the
strong demand for fine gold products in the youth market.
“Flare" collection, a sparkling collection that features diamonds
set in innovative illusion settings, crafted to create large and
eye-catching appearance, offers maximum sparkle in this
affordable luxury piece. "ColourfulMe" collection, one of its
signature collections, unveils the true colours and exquisite
array of jewellery adorned with colour stones.

To cater the lifestyles and independency of the Group’s
targeted segment of the “millennials” and “Gen Z" consumers,
the strategies and positioning in the jewellery wedding market
have evolved to address the shifting trends and expectations.
Building upon the foundation of traditional wedding
celebrations, the Group will expand the diversity and
personalisation of its products, and increase the brand
exposure through wedding activations.

The Group has been elevating its brand positioning to increase
its brand desirability and build revenue resilience. By focusing
on enhancing brand identity and equity, the Group aims to
prioritise the expansion of its market share in the wedding
market and enhancing the customer relationship building.

E H g R am koo A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

& R B 3 R

Strengthening the E-commerce Business

With the growing popularity of the internet, the Group has
established a jewellery presence on several online shopping
platforms - including HKTVmall, Tmall and jd.com - in order to
capture the massive potential of internet and mobile users and
enhance customer experience, and expand its revenue source
and enhance brand visibility at the same time. To formulate an
effective product strategy, the Group analyses the database
and internet behaviour of the users.

Currently, the Group's official website showcases a diverse
range of watch brands, with a focus on Patek Philippe, Rolex,
Tudor and Cartier, helping to promote the brands and their
signature collections. The Group will continue identifying
opportunities for collaboration with other watch brands.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, considering the pick-up in foot traffic after the
resumption of the multiple-entry Individual Visit Scheme for
Shenzhen permanent residents and the increase of disposal
income after several United States interest rate cuts in the past
six months - as well as the economic stimulus measures
introduced by the Central Government and the tourism
blueprint launched by the local government, the Group is
confident that the general retail market will regain its growth
momentum. Affected by the volatile property and stock
markets, the Group expects that gold jewellery, being an
alternative investment, will continue to be well received by
Chinese consumers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In response to the dynamic market situation, the Group will
promptly react to market changes and proactively optimise
product offerings. The Group will continue enhancing its
competitive edge and further expand its market presence, and
strive to seize the opportunities arising through the revival of
market momentum.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Bank balances and cash on hand of the Group as at 31
December 2024 increased to HK$949.8 million (2023:
HK$619.6 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and RMB. As at 31 December 2024, the Group did
not have any bank borrowings (2023: zero) and was in a net
cash position, hence its net gearing ratio (calculated on the
basis of bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents over
net asset value) was zero (2023: zero). The Group also had
available unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$1,043.3 million.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$4,071.8 million (2023
HK$3,859.1 million) and HK$531.2 million (2023: HK$531.1
million), respectively. Current ratio and quick ratio of the Group
were 7.7 (2023: 7.3) and 2.0 (20283: 1.5), respectively.

In view of the Group's financial position as at 31 December
2024, the Directors considered that the Group had sufficient
working capital for its operations and future development
plans.

E H g R am koo A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I A R A

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Placing of Shares

Subsequent to the Year, the Group successfully placed
477,250,000 shares of the Company (“Placing Share(s)") to
investors who were independent third parties at HK$0.167 per
Placing Share, which represented approximately 6.6% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the Placing Shares. The net proceeds
were approximately HK$79.3 million. Not less than 80% of net
proceeds will be used for enrichment of working capital for
expansion of the Group's retail network and the remaining
balance will be used for general working capital of the Group.
Details of the placing of shares were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 9 January 2025.

The net proceeds were not utilised as at the date of this annual
report and were expected to be utilised by 31 December 2025.

Acquisition of Property

Subsequent to the Year, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) to
acquire the space on 2/F to 4/F and the advertising space of
Nos. 4-8 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong at
an estimated consideration of approximately HK$79.8 million
("Acquisition”). Details of the Acquisition were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2025. As at
the date of this announcement, the Acquisition has not been
completed and is subject to the approval of the Company's
independent shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting
to be held in April 2025 tentatively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 666 (2023: 777)
salespersons and 210 (2023: 231) office staff. Total staff costs
(including Directors’' remuneration) were HK$370.3 million
(2023: HK$340.0 million) for the Year. Employees’' remuneration
was determined in accordance with individual's responsibility,
competence and skills, experience and performance as well as
market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, retirement benefits and other competitive fringe
benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which will be set out in
the section headed “Share Options” of this annual report.
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ACHIEVEMENTS
IR R

Elite Listed Enterprise Award 2023
- Watch & Jewellery

20232 b ZEARE
—BERIRE

Oriental Daily News
REBEKR

= . ,nve:s‘b?’@.'fx'f The 10th Investor Relations
¥ Awards 2024
2024 F F+EBREZRFEARE

Best Investor Relations Company (Small Cap)
EEREERGABR—/NER
Best Investor Presentation Material (Small Cap)

REREBEBRGRENEM—/NER

Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

bl Elite Enterprise Award 2024
2024 2 b3k X2
Oriental Daily News
Dl =k

Hong Kong Services

Awards 2024

2024 B R FB A IE The EDigest Brand Award 2024
202448 — fm & K #2
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HEMBHREHEANBZERE

CINDY YEUNG
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Executive Director and
Chairperson
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B
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CINDY YEUNG, aged 60, an Executive Director of the
Company and the Chairperson of the Board as well as the
Chairperson of the Executive Committee of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She joined the
Group in September 1990 and became a director of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery (HK) Company Limited, an operating arm of
the retail outlets of the Group in Hong Kong, in April 1999. Ms.
Yeung has over 30 years of experience in watch and jewellery
industry. She obtained the qualification of the Graduate
Gemologist of Gemological Institute of America (GIA) and
subsequently graduated from University of San Francisco with
a Bachelor's Degree of Science in Business Administration
majoring in Management, with emphasis on International
Business.

Ms. Yeung is a honorary president of the 2nd Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Federation of Guangzhou Women
Association Limited and council member of The Jewellers' and
Goldsmiths' Association of Hong Kong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 62, an Executive Director
of the Company. She has been involved in the management of
the Group since November 1998. Ms. Fan is also the
Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee, a
member of the Executive Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
She has over 35 years of corporate management experience in
diversified businesses ranging from retailing of watch and
jewellery, property investment and development, hotel and
hospitality, financial and securities services, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, artiste management
as well as media and publication. Ms. Fan is currently a director
of Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163)
("Emperor International”), Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (Stock Code: 296) ("Emperor E Hotel"), Emperor
Capital Group Limited (Stock Code: 717) ("Emperor Capital
Group”), Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491)
("Emperor Culture”), Ulferts International Limited (Stock
Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”) and New Media Lab Limited (Stock
Code: 1284) ("New Media Lab"), all being listed members of
Emperor Group. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong
and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration.

WONG CHI FAI, aged 69, an Executive Director and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company. He has been
involved in the management of the Group since November
1998. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of finance and management
experience in different businesses ranging from retailing of
watch and jewellery, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, financial and securities services,
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema development and
operation to entertainment production and investment, artiste
management as well as media and publication. Mr. Wong is a
director of Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor
Capital Group, Emperor Culture, Ulferts and New Media Lab,
all being listed members of Emperor Group. He is a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Note: With effect from 1 April 2025, Mr. Wong will be replaced by Mr. Leung
Ho Cheong, Larry in the abovementioned positions in the Company. He
will also retire from all positions of the listed members of Emperor
Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HEMBHREHEANBZERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 62, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in May
2016. She is also the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and
the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan is a retired solicitor with over 20 years of experience as
independent non-executive director of various listed
companies. She is currently an independent non-executive
director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
997), Emperor Capital Group Limited (Stock Code: 717) and
Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491), all being
listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with Bachelor's Degree in Laws.

LIU HING HUNG, aged 61, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2017. He is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over 20 years of
experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate
finance. He was previously an independent non-executive
director of SIM Technology Group Limited (Stock Code: 2000)
from September 2008 to January 2025, Mr. Liu holds a Master's
Degree in Business Administration. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.

LAW, MICHAEL KA MING, aged 64, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March
2024. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Law has over 30 years of
experience in corporate management, finance, banking,
construction and property development. He is currently an
executive director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8366) as well as an independent
non-executive director of Century Group International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2113) and Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 907), all being listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Law holds a Master's Degree in business
administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a Bachelor’s Degree in building studies from The University of
Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Quantity Surveyor of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

LEUNG HO CHEONG, LARRY, aged 44, joined the Company
as the Chief Executive Officer in June 2024, and is responsible
for the Group's business strategic planning and overseeing
various projects of the Group. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Leung assumed senior management positions in various large
corporations, where he was responsible for managing and
leading various major projects. Mr. Leung possesses extensive
experience in retail, investment properties and entertainment
sectors. Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Economics
and Finance from The University of Hong Kong, and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from The University of
Western Ontario, Canada.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
G

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 71 of this annual report. The dividends paid during the Year
and proposed to be paid for the Year are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HKO0.65 cent (2023: HKO0.76 cent) per
share for the Year amounting to approximately HK$44.1 million
(2023: HK$51.5 million), was paid to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.45 cent per share for the Year (2023: HK0.56 cent per
share), amounting to approximately HK$32.7 million (2023:
HK$38.0 million) to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 27 May 2025 (Tuesday), subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 16 May 2025 (Friday) (2025 AGM").

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group's performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group's business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5
to 12 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 33 to 63 of this annual report and
note 27b to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this annual
report.

In addition, an analysis of the Group's performance during the
Year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the Five-year Financial Summary on page 152. Discussion on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance, key
relationships with the Group's key stakeholders as well as
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
significant impact on the Company are set out in the 2024
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 74 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 31 December 2024, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong)
("Companies Ordinance"), amounted to HK$1,490,222,000
(2023: HK$1,378,789,000).

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made donations amounting to
HK$4,841,000 (2023: HK$nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
G

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.9% (20283: 1.5%) of
the total turnover of the Group. The Group's five largest
suppliers contributed to approximately 92.5% (2023: 86.8%) of
the purchases of the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or Shareholders
(who, to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the number of issued Shares) had any beneficial interest
in the above major customers and suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note)

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 31 January 2024)

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (appointed on 19 March 2024)
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (passed away on 4 February 2024)
Note: As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3 February 2025,
with effect from 1 April 2025, Mr. Leung Ho Cheong, Larry will be

appointed as an Executive Director in place of Mr. Wong Chi Fai.
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this annual report are set out from pages 14 to
17 of this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

In accordance with Article 79 of the Company’s Articles of
Association (“Articles”), Mr. Leung Ho Cheong, Larry (“Mr.
Leung"), who was appointed by the Board with effect from 1
April 2025, shall hold office until the 2025 AGM; whereas
pursuant to Articles 80(1) and 80(3) of the Articles, Ms. Chan
Sim Ling, Irene (“Ms. Chan") and Mr. Liu Hing Hung ("Mr. Liu")
shall retire by rotation at the 2025 AGM. Ms. Chan who served
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
("INED(s)") for almost 9 years, being eligible but does not offer
herself for re-election. Mr. Leung and Mr. Liu, being eligible,
shall offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2025 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The list of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report is kept at the
registered office of the Company and available for inspection
by the Shareholders during office hours.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group's business were entered into or
existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Articles and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of
the Group respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
P

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (“Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
adopted by the Company ("EWJ Securities Code") were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director Capacity/ Nature of interests
EENR Bttt

Ms. Cindy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of a private
BB T discretionary trust

ABRBERZEERZmA

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group
Holdings Limited ("Emperor W&J Holdings"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery Holdings Limited
("AY W&J Holdings"). AY W&J Holdings was in turn held by First
Family Advisors Trust reg. (“First Family”) in trust for a private
discretionary trust of which Ms. Cindy Yeung was one of the
eligible beneficiaries and had deemed interests in the same

Shares.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
G

Ordinary shares ZiBhe
Number of Approximate %

Name of associated = Capacity/Nature shares of issued

Name of Directors corporations of interests interested voting shares
FHEERZ HERTAE
ERNMR HEEE B8 B HEttH RNHBE BREERDO%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Emperor International  Eligible beneficiary 4,121,416,834 74.71
BRI T 2 E R of a private (Note) (Htzt)
discretionary trust
MARIBERZ
BEBZ@mA

Emperor E Hotel - Ditto- 636,075,041 53.52

RERGEE —[FLE— (Note) (Hf&t)

Emperor Culture - Ditto- 2,371,313,094 73.80

HEVILESE —[mLE- (Note) (fft&L)

Ulferts - Ditto- 600,000,000 75.00

Bt -\ (Note) (ftzt)

New Media Lab - Ditto- 315,000,000 52.50

MELE —[RlE— (Note) (f152)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Emperor International  Beneficial owner 15,750,000 0.29
BEEY L RERERF BmEBEA

Emperor E Hotel - Ditto- 2,430,750 0.20

REREANE —[E—-

Note: Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Culture, Ulferts

and New Media Lab are companies with their shares listed on the

Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately owned by the

respective private discretionary trusts. Ms. Cindy Yeung had

deemed interests in the same shares by virtue of being one of the
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bR IR B Sh > 1020245 12831H »
MEEFEARSTHRABRARTHHE
EAREEZR (EERESFKIPERDS
XV EB) 2R R RH ~ BRI R E#EH
BEEEAREDIKE o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors or Chief Executives had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
G

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 May 2018. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. No option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

The number of share options available for grant under the
scheme mandate as at both the beginning and the end of the
Year was 687,308,812 Shares, which represented 9.47% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at the
end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or Chief Executives or their spouses or children under
18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or Chief Executives, as at
31 December 2024, the persons or corporations (other than a
Director or Chief Executive) who had, or were deemed or taken
to have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:
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Names Capacity/Nature of interests
BB/ MR g #mitE
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Beneficial owner

BmEEA

Emperor W&J Holdings
HEEBHRKETR

AY W&]J Holdings
R AR E LR R2EGZE 2 Ex

First Family
MARBEFEZZEA

Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
("Dr. Yeung")

BEREL ((HBEL)

MABBELZRIILA

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
CUN=kogun

Interest of spouse

Aol m

Brandes Investment Partners, L. P. Investment manager

REKHE

Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Cindy Yeung had
deemed interests as set out under Section (a) of "Directors’ and Chief

Executives' Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the
Directors or Chief Executives were not aware of any person or
corporation (other than a Director or Chief Executive) who had,
or were deemed or taken to have, any interests or short
positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
DI Register.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Interest in a controlled corporation

Trustee of a private discretionary trust

Founder of a private discretionary trust

Number of Approximate
issued Shares % of issued
interested voting Shares
HFAEREEZ He®TE
iz in & H G RERB A%
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (fft5t)
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (Kf3t)
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (Ff&t)
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (f15%)
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note) (f15%)
339,017,288 5.00

faE . EWERMEBEXH @B TEERRETHAR
ZREEE PARRGHEBELTRESER#E
ZEERR °

bR E IR B E SN > R2024F12831H ' &%
FESTHAEMANBEAMALTIEE (B
ERRSTHAERIN RER KRG HIERR
NHEEARRATREFEE AL AR
Bz RS XA o

EFENHRERBZES

2024128310 > BIEBIER RS L
mFB (T EHRA) EFREEEIARES
BrEEBBATHRERAEAERBEXRE
BB AR E 2 EMERER
RIS o
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions with connected persons (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company and a Director had material
interests, directly or indirectly, in such transactions:

Date: 2020 MLA: 3 December 2020
2024 MLA: 23 March 2023

Parties: (1) Emperor International Agreement: the
Company and Emperor International

(2) Emperor E Hotel Agreement: the
Company and Emperor E Hotel

Terms: 2020 MLA: From 1 April 2021 to 31 March
2024

2024 MLA: From 1 April 2024 to 31 March
2027

Nature: Each of MLA sets out the framework of the terms
governing all existing and future tenancy/licensing
transaction(s) (“Tenancy Transaction(s)")
regarding leasing of certain properties (including
offices and retail shops) from Emperor International
and its subsidiaries (collectively "Emperor
International Group”) and/or Emperor E Hotel and
its subsidiaries (collectively "Emperor E Hotel
Group") with aggregate tenancy annual caps for (i)
each of the 9 months ended 31 December 2021,
the financial years ended 31 December 2022 and
2023 and the 3 months ended 31 March 2024
under 2020 MLA; and (ii) each of the 9 months
ended 31 December 2024, the financial years
ending 31 December 2025 and 2026 and the 3
months ending 31 March 2027 under 2024 MLA.
Following the completion of distribution in species
as special dividend of Emperor International on 30
August 2024, Emperor E Hotel ceased to be
Emperor International's subsidiary.
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Connected
relationship
and Director’s
interests:

Announcements:

Circulars:

Aggregate
Amounts:

Pursuant to the MLAs, relevant member(s) of the
Group and Emperor International Group and/or
Emperor E Hotel Group may from time to time enter
into any respective definitive leasing agreements in
relation to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)"). The terms of each
Definitive Leasing Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms or on terms which are no less
favourable to the Group than terms offered by
independent third parties. The terms and rental shall
be subject to arm’'s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition of the properties
and with reference to the then prevailing market
rents on property(ies) comparable in location, area
and permitted use.

As the Company, Emperor International and
Emperor E Hotel were indirectly controlled by
the respective private discretionary trusts set
up by Dr. Yeung, Emperor International and
Emperor E Hotel were deemed connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Ms. Cindy Yeung, a Director,
had deemed interest in the transactions by
virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries
of the relevant private discretionary trust
controlling Emperor International and Emperor
E Hotel.

3 December 2020, 2 February 2021, 23 March
2023 and 25 May 2023

24 December 2020 and 25 April 2023

For the Year, the aggregate right-of-use assets
amount and rental expense amount paid in
respect of the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International Group and/or Emperor
E Hotel Group (which did not exceed the
approved right-of-use assets annual cap of
HK$275,000,000 and rental expense annual
cap of HK$3,750,000 respectively for the said
years) were as follows:

Right-of-use assets HK$81,727,000

Rental expense HK$2,325,000
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P.28

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

Connected
relationship
and Director’s
interests:

Announcement:

Consignment for
the Year:

1 December 2022
(1) The Company
(2) Dr. Yeung

1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025

The Group may at its discretion make
consignment arrangements with Dr. Yeung
and his associates (“Yeung Family") and sell
the consigned items at its retail shops at the
Directors may think fit and beneficial to the
Group.

As Dr. Yeung is the father of Ms. Cindy Yeung
(a Director), hence Dr. Yeung and the Yeung
Family members were deemed connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

1 December 2022

During the Year, jewellery, watch and accessory
items with an aggregate consignment value of
HK$21,783,000 consigned from the Yeung
Family was recorded which did not exceed the
annual cap of HK$35,000,000 for the Year. The
Group had applied the same purchasing and
retail pricing policy and mechanism to these
items as those normally adopted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group. Cost of sales of the consigned items
was HK$1,440,000 during the Year.
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Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

3 May 2024

(1) The Company

(2) Ms. Cindy Yeung

(3) Emperor International
(4) Emperor E Hotel

(5) Emperor Capital Group
(6) Emperor Culture

(7) Ulferts

(8) New Media Lab

3 May 2024 to 31 December 2026

Pursuant to the agreement, any of Yeung
Family members and the above listed group
companies ("Associate Group Member(s)")
introduces and refers any client or customer to
the Group and such client or customer makes
purchases of the eligible merchandise offered
by the Group, the Group agrees to pay a
referral fee to such Associate Group Member
on a per-sale basis and on such terms as the
relevant member of the Group and the relevant
Associate Group Member may agree from time
to time.
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Connected As Ms. Cindy Yeung is a Director, she had
relationship deemed interests in the transactions by virtue
and Director’s of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the
interests: relevant private discretionary trust controlling

the Company. The Associate Group Members
were indirectly controlled by the respective
private discretionary trusts set up by Dr.
Yeung, the Associate Group Members were
deemed connected persons of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Announcement: 3 May 2024

Aggregate During the Year, the aggregate amount of
Amounts: referral fees paid to the Associate Group

Members was HK$34,000 which did not
exceed the annual cap of HK$19,800,000 for
the Year.

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report,
the transactions as shown in item 10 are non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group (“Non-exempt
CCTs") and that the Company had complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company's independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group's Non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The independent auditor issued an unqualified conclusion in
respect of the Non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs had
reviewed the Non-exempt CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and
confirmed that these transactions had been entered into by the
Group:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal or better commercial terms (as the case may
be); and

(iii) according to the respective agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the VYear.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear
link of business strategy and a close alignment with the
Shareholders’ interest and current market best practice).
Remuneration should be paid with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the executive and non-executive Directors, internal equity of
employment conditions across the Group and applicability of
performance based remuneration. The Director's fees are paid
fees in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.
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Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performances as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, ad-hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the issued Shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and a resolution
for its re-appointment as independent auditor of the Company

will be proposed at the 2025 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Cindy Yeung
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, investors, employees as well as stakeholders of
the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules so as to having effective application of the principles of
good corporate governance. During the Year, the Company had
fully complied with all code provisions of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity, excellence
in products and services, people first and positivity, which is
underpinned by its purpose and values that enable employees
at all levels of the Group to thrive and meet their full potentials
by acting in a lawful, ethical and responsible manner that
allows the Company to deliver sustainable long-term
performance and operate in a way that benefits society and the
environment.

The Company's purpose and values serve as a guide for
employees’' conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are
integrated throughout the Company's operational practices,
workplace policies and practices and stakeholder relationships:
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and
shaping the corporate culture of the Company, as well as
defining the purpose, values and strategic direction of the
Group, which are under review by the Board. Taking into
account the corporate culture is reflected in various contexts,
such as workforce engagement, employee retention and
training, legal and regulatory compliance, staff safety, wellbeing
and support, the culture, purpose, value and strategy of the
Group are aligned with one another.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for
the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance of
the Group.

The Board currently comprises six Directors, with three
Executive Directors and three INEDs. Names and other
biographical details of the members of the Board are set out on
pages 14 and 17 of this annual report under the “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” section. All of them
possess the skills, experience and expertise either in the same
industry or relevant to the management of the business of the
Group.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board, the following mechanisms were established during the
Year:

e sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board,;

e no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

e separation of the role of the Chairperson and the Chief
Executive Officer ("CEO") ensures that there is a balance
of power and authority; and

e annual meeting between the Chairperson and all INEDs
without presence of other Directors provides an effective
platform for the Chairperson to listen to independent views
on various issues concerning the Group.
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During the Year, the Board reviewed the implementation of
these mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.

The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting
out the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to the business
nature of the Company. In designing the Board's composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a wide range of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other factors
that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from time
to time. The merits and contribution that will bring to the Board
for any Director proposed for re-election or any candidate
nominated to be Director will also be assessed, taking into
account the Company's corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of
educational background, professional knowledge, industry
experience and length of service. The diversity mix of the Board
as at 31 December 2024 is summarized as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age
Distribution and Length of Service

Number of Directors

BEANH
7
6
5
4
3
: ED
: BITES
0
Designation Gender
5] 5

Age Group

ERERBRE

RAFE  EFTEERAEGNAITERL
BEZSHBDABR

ARBTHRATEZTELTIERRKR > EPE]
BREREFELTEMAH > BRESEAR
BIEBMETEAIRE KR ARZITEHM -
AABEREEFEHREMATH » FULRR
BEEEEFHEZ T BEEEEBARER
MR Fle - XERBBEER  BE X
KB RE-NAKRBRFFE UNREES
B EE R ERNEMEMEAR o E5F
HENEZEENESNEMNERZRES
ZIEEANGAEFEHRZBERERME
EREERIAADNEERBRBEFE
BRBE~ Mg~ B R BT IEZ G o

RENEFETABERRRTBANESS
S BENH TEEREABRFEFENZ T
1E# & o 1R2024F12831H EF R L it
MEEBT

(i) EFEBANBHER - 1155 « Fb2 5
iR AR 75 F &

Over 20
204 E

Over 60

60 £

1-5

Length of Service
(No. of years)

IRISEE (F)

FaedEn
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(ii) Directors’ Skills and Experience

(i) EFFRERAEEE

Number of Share of the
Areas of Experience Directors Board
KEREE BEEAH ESEMWNHE
Related Industry Knowledge/Experience 3 50%
MERAITE MR, KR
Business Management 3 50%
MEEE
Legal/Regulatory 2 33%
EREE
Financial & Accounting 3 50%
TR 5t
Strategic Planning & Risk Management 6 100%

BiRE RREREE

The Board's gender diversity level is relatively high compared
to other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, with three
female directors out of six (60%). During the Year, the
Nomination Committee and the Board reviewed the gender
diversity target of having no less than 25% female directors on
the Board and found that the current gender diversity of the
Board was appropriate, balanced and exceeding the target set.
Therefore, no amendment on numerical target and timeline
was proposed for further enhancing the gender diversity of the
Board. The Nomination Committee will continue reviewing the
composition of the Board to maintain diversity.

As at 31 December 2024, our total workforce comprised of
66% female and 34% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 42.9% female and 57.1% male. The current
gender diversity of workforce was appropriate taking into
account the business models and operational needs.

The term of appointment of the INEDs is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election provisions under the Articles and
the Listing Rules. Based on the annual review conducted by
the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them
to be independent with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Other than regular Board meetings are held during the Year,
additional Board meetings, or meetings of Board committees
established by the Board to consider specific matters were

convened, when necessary.

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the

Year is set out below:

EREB WS

REFER BRERRTEFI RN T
REBETHNEZTERNESTTREN
UZEFREEEH UERRESE -

AFEEEEHRGRZBERHIIWT !

Number of meetings attended/held
HEER STE2XY

Name of Directors Board

E5HY

Executive Directors
HTES

Ms. Cindy Yeung
BHBLT

6/6 (C)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa 6/6

TEEYL

Mr. Wong Chi Fai 6/6
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (Note 1) 0N
RER%E (He21)

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHGTES

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

BBt

6/6

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 6/6

BEELE

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (Note 2)
BER LT (Hfit2)

1/1

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (Note 3)
BRBLE (H7323)

4/4

Executive
Committee

5/5(C)

5/5

5/5

Audit
Committee

BLEEE

3/3

3/3(C)

2/2

Corporate

Nomination Governance
Committee Committee
tXER

&8¢

General
Meeting

Remuneration
Committee

#NezEe RYEEE RRAE

1/1

- 1/1 il

- 1/1(C) 11 1/1
1/1
1/1(C) on = =

il

Total number of meeting(s) held: 6

BR8N

C: Chairperson/chairman of the Board/committee

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED £ 28X %k EH IR 2 7

C: HEHEg /LETIR

P.37
2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
& E & 1R WS

Notes:

1. Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky resigned as Executive Director, CEO and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company with effect from 31
January 2024.

2. Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne passed away on 4 February 2024.

3. Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming was appointed as INED, the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committeee of the Company to fill casual vacancy created by
the late Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne with effect from 19 March 2024.

4, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Wong Chi Fai with effect from 1
October 2024.

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Company received biannual confirmation from each
Director that he/she has given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Company during the Year. Directors also
disclosed to the Company the changes, if any, in the number
and nature of offices they held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitment, including the
identity of the public companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved.

The position of Chairperson of the Board is held by Ms. Cindy
Yeung. The Chairperson provides leadership to the Board and
ensures effective performance of the duties of the Board. The
day-to-day management of the Group is delegated by the
Board to the CEO, Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky or Mr. Leung, who
is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development. The segregation of duties made the
Board and the operation of the Group function effectively.
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Ms. Cindy Yeung sets the agenda for the Board and ensures
that members of the Board receive accurate, timely and clear
information, and that matters to be taken into consideration are
given their due weight, so that sound decisions can be made.
With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson
ensures that the Board properly exercises its powers, holds its
meetings and implements procedures in compliance with all
rules and requirements, and full and proper records are
maintained.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have
access to supporting papers and relevant information for each
scheduled meeting. All Directors also have access to the
services of the Company Secretary and her team, and may take
independent professional advice upon request, at the
Company'’s expense.

Newly appointed Directors will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. Besides, the
Company provides Directors with regular updates on changes
to and developments of the Group's business, and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
Directors' duties and responsibilities to help them make
informed decisions and discharge their duties and responsibilities
as Directors.

In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, Mr. Law,
Michael Ka Ming, who was appointed as INED on 19 March
2024, received training and legal advice on 15 March 2024 and
he confirmed that he understood his obligations as Director.
During the Year, each Director participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training to the Company.
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Name of Directors Topics of training covered
EENR HEZ g ERE

Ms. Cindy Yeung (1) corporate governance
Bt TEER

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (2) finance

BEEZL 7

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (8) industry-specific
mSERE 1T AER

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (4) regulatory

PRIEIS 22+ BB

Mr. Liu Hing Hung
BEELE

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming
EXRASE
(appointed on 19 March 2024)
(7:20244F 35 19H EZ1F)

Board Committees EEEZEY

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate AW ESETETHB S REEENEIE
effective management, certain functions of the Board have ZEEZETHAECHEZTSEZRFTHATEE
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, CBRZEEE -HNEESR -REEEY
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination K&GEXELEEET -

Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

The Executive Committee consists of all Executive HITZESHEBINTESHEMN HD

Directors, namely Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson of the AaBaBet (ZEE8FE)  BEEY

Committee), Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa and Mr. Wong TRESESLE HITEEREBESR

Chi Fai. It has all powers and authorities of the Board BTN RERE E EHHE

except the following major matters as set out in a “Formal EgFAERBHESEERE#HZ2EEIE

Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by the RNFBEEFER MBS T ETEETIERF

Board": 4

e determining the Group's objectives and strategies; s EEAXAEEZERKEKD;

e approving annual and interim results and financial o HEFERFHEEURTBTRSE ;
reporting;

e declaring or recommending payment of dividends or o EIRSEFHIKMEREIEMDIK ;

other distributions;
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e approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

e approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in
relation to lease transactions recognizing the right-of-
use asset according to HKFRS 16 “Leases”) under the
Listing Rules;

e approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt CCTs (other than those transactions took
place from time to time under the master agreement(s)
previously approved by the Board/Shareholders (as
the case may be)) under the Listing Rules; and

e approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.

To advise and assist the Executive Committee on the
formulation and implementation of the environment, social
and governance ("ESG") initiatives of the Group, a sub-
committee under the Executive Committee known as the
ESG Committee was set up. The ESG Committee consists
of representatives from operation and supporting
departments and the Executive Committee. It has the
powers and authorities as delegated by the Executive
Committee to formulate and execute relevant ESG action
plan, and assess and make recommendations on matters
concerning the Group's sustainability development and
ESG risks and opportunities.

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Liu Hing Hung (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Chan
Sim Ling, Irene and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are
set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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P.42

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

Vi,

Vii,

viii,

reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and the accuracy and fairness
of the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 ("Previous
Year”) and the condensed consolidated interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2024;

reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the
Previous Year;

performed annual review of the non-exempt CCTs of
the Group for the Previous Year;

recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor at the 2024 annual general
meeting ("2024 AGM");

reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-audit
services payable to the independent auditor;

reviewed the independence of the independent
auditor and approved its engagement;

approved the audit plan for the Year;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function; and

recommended the Board on the formal adoption of
policy on use of external auditor for non-audit services
of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (Chairman of the
Committee) and Mr. Liu Hing Hung, both being INEDs, and

Ms.

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, being an Executive Director.
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The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors' fees and made recommendation
to the Board; and

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages.

Before making recommendation to the Board, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed and assessed the
remuneration package of the Directors with reference to
the Group's operating results, duties and level of
responsibility of the Directors and the prevailing market
conditions. Details of the remuneration of each of the
Directors for the Year are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming, both being
INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, being an
Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
and Board succession pursuant to the Nomination Policy
adopted by the Company.
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The Nomination Policy aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board Diversity
Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and the
nomination procedures for (i) nominating new Director to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Directors and Shareholders regarding
any Director proposed for election or re-election at general
meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election
of new Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential
candidates from any source as it may consider appropriate
and evaluate them by considering various factors,
including their professional expertise, industry and
business experience, time commitments, potential
contributions to board diversity, material conflict of interest
with the Group (if any) and independence (for INEDs). The
Committee will then make recommendation of suitable
candidates to the Board for consideration of appointment.
In case of re-appointment of existing Directors who will
retire at annual general meetings ("AGM"), the Committee
will review the retirement of Directors and make
recommendations to the Board accordingly.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board;

ii. reviewed the Board Diversity Policy;

iii. reviewed the mechanisms implemented regarding
independent views available to the Board;

iv. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

v. reviewed Directors’ time commitment in performing
their duties as Directors;

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Directors at the 2024 AGM;

vii. made recommendation to the Board on nomination of
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming as new Director to fill the
casual vacancy created by the late Ms. Chan Wiling,

Yvonne; and

viii. reviewed the gender diversity target at Board level.
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The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung,
Vanessa (Chairperson of the Committee), being an
Executive Director, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Mr. Liu
Hing Hung, both being INEDs, a representative from
company secretarial function and a representative from
finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG
Committee is available on the Company's website. The
primary duties of the CG Committee are (i) developing and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company (“CG Policy”) and making
recommendations to the Board; (ii) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iii)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to Directors and relevant employees of
the Group regarding dealings in the Company's securities;
(iv) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; and (v) reviewing the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
annual report.

A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the codes of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company Secretaries, being employees of
the Company, duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the EWJ Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
on no less exacting terms than the required standard as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules regarding the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the EWJ Securities Code throughout
the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance, position and prospects.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgment and estimates that were
prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial
statements were prepared on a "going concern” basis (with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary) and
showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for the
Year. The management provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before it for approval. The
independent auditor of the Company made a statement about
their reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor's
Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. The
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems ("Risk Control Systems”) are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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The key objectives of the Risk Control Systems include:
e safeguarding assets;

e ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

e promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws; and

e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

Internal control policies and procedures within the Group
are updated regularly with the primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of Risk Control Systems.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering governance,
operational, financial and compliance controls; and (ii) risk
management functions in the principal subsidiaries of the
Company for the Year.

(1) Governance Controls

The control structure of the Risk Control Systems is
set out as follows:

The Board

e responsible for the overall Risk Control Systems
and reviewing their effectiveness;

e oversee the Risk Control Systems on an ongoing
basis with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

e ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Risk Control Systems;

e define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limits of authority; and

e determine the nature and extent of significant
risks (including ESG risks) that the Group is
willing to take in achieving the strategic objectives
and formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies.
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Audit Committee

e review and discuss the Risk Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain
effective Risk Control Systems. This discussion
also includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualification and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group's accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions;

e review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group's ability to
respond to changes in its business and the
external environment;

e consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by internal or independent
auditor and make recommendations to the Board;
and

e review and discuss annually with significant
control failings or weaknesses that are identified
by the auditors.

Executive Committee

e with the assistance of the ESG Committee, review
the effectiveness of ESG-related Risk Control
Systems and report to the Audit Committee for its
review,

The management (includes CEO, heads of
business units, departments and divisions)

e design, implement the Risk Control Systems’
policies and procedures duly endorsed by senior
management and the Board;

e monitor the Risk Control Systems properly and
ensure the Risk Control Systems are executed
effectively;

* monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in day-to-day operations;

e give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or independent auditors; and

e provide written confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Risk Control Systems.
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Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Risk
Control Systems in respect of all material controls;

alert the management on the audit review findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the
internal controls of the Group; and

report results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the
Board on regular basis.

(2) Operational Control

The management is responsible for analysing the
control environment, identifying risks pertaining
thereto, and implementing various controls therein as
follows:

Approach taken: The management communicates
with relevant staff and reviews relevant documentation
of the Risk Control Systems and evaluates findings
of any deficiencies in the design of the Group's Risk
Control Systems, then provides recommendations
for improvement and assesses the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on
the Risk Control Systems will be reported to the
Audit Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
To safeguard the assets against unauthorized use
or disposition and ensure maintenance of proper
accounting records that are in compliance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations for the
provision of reliable financial information for
internal use and/or external publication.

Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of the
Group's business such as raw materials,
inventories, products, customer information and
human resources. It also tracks audit trails in the
authorization system, under which permissions
and responsibility of authorization are clearly
identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Risk Control Systems.
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Proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

iv. Reports and variance analysis: Reports and iv. BMERERESN: THE LK
analysis of each operating segment in the R TN ESEESDEIETAR
upstream, midstream and downstream are %Ei)i’z I AT BN T R
conducted on a regular basis such that the SR8z &RIE ©
performance of each operating segment can be
easily accessible.

v. Safeguarding of assets: To safeguard shops'’ v. REEE AaREEHEE &
assets, security systems are installed and properly [EEIILRRELRMEAETYS
maintained in good condition at each shop. In EBIE o LI ERRETT RIS LA HE
addition, tests are carried out on a regular basis REZRFGEFTREEBEERES
to ensure the proper functioning of the security HMEERERBANMEZERER -
systems and implementation of internal control Qﬂﬁ]fﬁﬁﬂ’]tﬁﬁxgﬁ E HA ke 28
procedures in daily operations. Daily stock count BERMDFHEHSE  EZE
for each shop, regular and surprise stock counts %?ﬁ’zﬁ??{& STER L HE e BT
are arranged by the shop managers, Assurance 1% 81 Efﬁﬂ'l_ TFEERM B
Team and Finance & Accounts Department BEHEMEENREHEERS
respectively. Annual stock count is also carried RBETE > WREARTERERN
out by independent auditor. Insurance coverage 16 R R 5 A o
on inventory is periodically reviewed by the
management for sufficient coverage, and to
ensure compliance with the terms and conditions
of the insurance policies.

vi. Quality control: Diamonds are either sent to vii mBRE I BOXTEERES
authoritative and reliable organisations for o] SERVM B 1T 5T e 5858 0 X
assessment and certification or are tested KABRMNEE RSB ETRIA
internally with our own professional equipment to 2o UERREERSKE o It
assure the quality fulfills good standard 4h %@Eﬁ:ﬁLi%ﬂZf@)ﬁ
requirement. Besides, gold products are sent to ERE > THHMEWmAEZE -
authoritative precious metal laboratory to test the ?%1% SRt emEEmKERT K
contents on sample and regular basis. In order to EARHBEMEAEDRNRE > &
provide assurance of high quality products and NEEMAGTHE &kstEl o
services and to enhance the protection of our
customers’ interest, the Company had joined
several associations and schemes.

vii. Proper authorization on sales discounts: Discount vii. MEHEITINEHBERRE 710
policies are properly maintained and controlled by BERKETHEMAREYSEILR
electronic point-of-sales systems. Discount Rl > S A B A8 59 T 0 SR &
policies and pricing strategy are reviewed from TEERE o
time to time.

(3) Financial Controls (3) BAFEECIE

ERITEENELESF  BRE
B ERRENEHE R EE
aH
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ii. Annual budget and quarterly forecast on all
capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

iii. The management monitors the business activities
closely and reviews monthly financial results of
operations against budgets/forecasts;

iv. Regular reports on revenue, trade receivables'
ageing and debtors' ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's financial performance;

v. Monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

vi. Annual audit by independent auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group's accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and

vii. Daily available fund report is reviewed to monitor
the cash flows against budgets/forecasts.

Compliance Controls

The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance controls:

i. Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the CG
Committee as delegated by the Board in order to
ensure the Group is in compliance with all the
applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations;
and to keep up on any legal developments;

(4)

Vi,

Vii,

EREB WS

FREEARWABEEZFEER
REERMNERE 19ATEE
EREALET PR

EEBBRERIEXT LY TR
BHEE TR EESRAZMBEE
FRETHES

BERBERY - H5EER
TEER B R E U B AR B 09 R MR R
&R RS - AR
BRH RIS T T4 R AR
B

AEEEFRHNEMFREN
SRAEM Hh#HALXREERRX
B HHERRKRAERNFT RS
RE#ZENFG TRARTEF

15

B ZHENET EE B LUER
HEMBRERDBEREARESR
Al AEEZEBERKERY
ERERGERER K

ERNSAUTHAEEHRS - LT
RERBERE TRANHLLE

1T8sHE -

SHEE

RBEUTHREEFUREERE

2N

FREBTEAREERESEMN
HERREREHEFESR2E
FELLZEEEMBARERN
BRAEBETRABR LR
AR BRI RARSG) 5 W R REE
ERTENEE

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 2 28§k %k EHR 7 P51

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
& E & 1R WS

Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for
the attention of the Board. The Board shall make
timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary and
take appropriate measures to preserve
confidentiality of inside information until proper
dissemination of inside information;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Group and ensure proper
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules and disclosure requirements;

Group's zero-tolerance stance against bribery and
corruption and assists employees in recognising
circumstances that may lead to or give the
appearance of being involved in corruption or
unethical business conduct, so as to avoid such
conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to
promptly seek guidance where necessary or
report any reasonably suspected case of
corruption or any attempts thereof, to the
management through an appropriate reporting
channel;
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iv. Whistle-blowing policy is established to provide iv. BERBEETHE ELAEEE
reporting channels and guidance for employees BREAEREEBFERIER
and related third parties who have business F=FH (WMERLRHER) TR
dealings with the Group (e.g. customers and BREZNER T AERRNI
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence and D BRRBE R E1T AR LA
anonymity, about any suspected misconduct or o EEERE2EREZERE
malpractice within the Group. The Audit BEREREZHNEREERET
Committee, delegated by the Board, shall ensure RERIEI 2 BE > T EERFEREX
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and BENRETH RIZHEME
independent investigation of any concerns raised, &
appropriate follow-up actions are taken and other
recommendations are provided, if thinks fit;

v. Anti-corruption policy is established to outline the v REBHEETHITE  HfliA

EEHBERNESNEEIL
% HBHE THBIPIEERE
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TA THRNERKRESRIEE
BBABEENRERENEEE
BEERAEEBERENESEMN
EEEHE ;

P.52 EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED ¥ 2 XHEHE AT

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

vi. Anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing policy and procedures is established to
set out the general framework for combating
crime against money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guideline to combat money
laundering and terrorist and help the Group's
employees identify and assess clients/customers/
suppliers/vendors/contractors/transactions/
activities of high risk of money laundering,
terrorist financing or other financial crime and
take appropriate measures and actions; and

vii. Dealers in Precious Metals and Stones Category
B Registration has been granted by the
Commissioner of Customs and Excise pursuant to
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing ("AML/CFT") Ordinance (Cap. 615). A
Category B Registrant (“"CBR") shall conduct
Customer Due Diligence measures and record-
keeping when carrying out any cash transaction(s)
with total value of or above HK$120,000 in Hong
Kong.

Concerning the nature, size and complexity of our
businesses and the money laundering and terrorist
financing ("ML/TF") risks arising from our businesses,
the following AML/CFT systems have been
implemented:

e compliance management arrangements;

e independent audit function;

e employee screening procedures; and

e an ongoing employee training programme.

To highlight the compliance management arrangements,
they facilitate the CBR to implement AML/CFT systems
to comply with relevant legal and regulatory obligations
as well as to manage ML/TF risks effectively. They
include oversight by CBR's senior management, and
appointment of a Compliance Officer and a Money
Laundering Reporting Officer.

Vi,

Vil,
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P.54

(1)

Responsibilities of the above three roles are as
follows:

e Senior management: Responsible for
implementing effective AML/CFT systems that
can adequately manage the ML/TF risks
identified.

e Compliance Officer: Act as the focal point within
a CBR for the oversight of all activities relating to
the prevention and detection of ML/TF, and
providing support and guidance to the senior
management to ensure that ML/TF risks are
adequately identified, understood and managed.

e Money Laundering Reporting Officer: As a
central reference point for reporting suspicious
transactions and also as the main point of contact
with the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit (JFIU)
and law enforcement agencies.

Review of Internal Controls

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on timely basis.

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk analysis, risk evaluation, risk
management measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks
are evaluated by the Board and management based
on (i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the
Group's financial results; (ii) the probability and
frequency that the risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity
or speed at which risks can occur.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risks as follows:

Risk elimination - The management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation - The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to reduce
the likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

Risk control and monitoring - It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable
and how to address those that are not. Accidents
and other situations involving loss or near-loss
will be investigated and properly documented as
part of the effort to manage risks.

Risk retention - The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group and their respective
key level and key control measures are set out below:

a)

Declining tourists demand and volatility in
local luxury spending, driven by structural
shifts in post-pandemic consumption patterns

Facing the unfavourable market situation, the
Group:

e partners with luxury brands or local business
corporations for joint events. This can attract
a broader audience and provide additional
value through curated experiences;
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5

e hosts exclusive VIP events offer private
previews of new collections or special sales
which can strengthen brand loyalty and client
engagement, resulting to stimulate immediate
purchases;

e enhances tiered loyalty programs that reward
repeat customers with exclusive discounts,
priority access to sales or bespoke experiences
tailored to individual preferences;

e introduces the "Emperor Gold Club’, a savings
and value-preservation program that features
attractive gifts and vouchers to attract both
new and existing customers; and

e accelerates market diversification and
business model beyond the Hong Kong
market to capture new opportunities.

b) Damage to brand name and reputation

In addition to advertising and promotional efforts
in strengthening our brand image, the Group has
also given much attention to:

e enhance service standards through regular
customer service training programs and
periodic mystery shopper reviews to ensure
consistent delivery of the brand experience;

e ensure product quality through rigorous
vendor selection, comprehensive quality
checks upon delivery, and continuous performance
monitoring;

e register of brand name and major jewellery
product collection names;

e evaluate the effectiveness of the trademark
protection efforts and identify areas for
improvement through quarterly meeting held
by Trademark Protection Execution Committee;
and

e brand name infringements which are followed

up by legal department until completely
resolved.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED # 2 x kB HR A

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§

o BEWMVIPEZEH) > LUREM
¥ﬁ%’*§'JE’J7FL\A%E 5 ol 5 B 8
€ 1858 B R E R #HE
BER 28 MR B R
BE;

o BIENHRFIEEFE > KO
BRERHEBHD  BLE
BAESTEHNE=RE ;

e HWHTIHESLE BOMES
g UEEBR&EERS
MEER &

s MMEMmBZI > HERER
EFBUINTE  LUBERH
P o

DDHEH&TD = ?/E\

(RIBIBES KRS EE8) 58 e
R REBITARIRELT
B H :

o BBTEMEFRDIEIIGSE
K ip R B S MR AR
K IR MAR RS

ZBBRENHEHIME
ERNE2EEERERTE
VESERERERME

3 bl r';H

s HMEERERZOHKEERR
5278

e FHHERENTEZERS
ZAMANEZE > JHEER
ETIENB M WHEEX
HEEE &

o MR RBERIZHE AR
RiE > BEETEMRARBILLE -




c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reliance on major suppliers and watch
brands

In fact, the Group's success largely rides on its
relationship with the world's giant watch suppliers
and top-tier brands. The loss of key brands may
adversely affect the Group's business. To cope
with this, the Group:

e centralizes communication with major watch
brands suppliers within top management and
continue to maintain watch brand diversification;

e develops and maintains mutually beneficial
and long-term relationship with all suppliers,
and together actively seeking opportunities
for joint innovation initiatives; and

e enhances "Emperor Jewellery" business and
proprietary brand collections by leveraging
the star power of renowned artists and cross-
business synergies within Emperor Group,
boosting brand visibility and customer
engagement.

Challenges to natural diamond market
dynamics due to emergence of lab-grown
diamonds

e FEmphasizing the unique qualities and
emotional value of natural diamonds.

e Educating consumers about the differences
between the natural and lab-grown diamonds,
including the rarity and traditional value of
natural diamonds.

e Launching more gold-inlaid diamond jewellery
series featuring unique designs and intricate
craftsmanship to attract consumers and highlight
the unparalleled value of natural diamonds.

Substandard design and production of
jewellery

The Group's strategy is to yield higher gross
margin and avoid price competition with other
market players. As such, quality of our jewellery
and highly regarded designs are vital.
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e The Group maintains a high-quality design
team with strong market trend expertise,
supported by a rigorous review process
involving merchandising, design, sales
operations and shop representatives.

e Stringent vendor qualification processes
including initial selection based on production
capacity and ethical standards, followed by
regular quality performance review conducted
by merchandising and quality control teams
are maintained.

e All jewellery products are subject to multi-tier
quality inspections including detailed checks
by the quality control team for craftsmanship
and material integrity, followed by final
verification by the shop front sales team
before display.

e Advanced diamond scanning equipment is
utilized to screen out synthetic diamonds
effectively, and procurement is restricted to
internationally recognized suppliers who
adhere to stringent ethical and are verified by
Kimberley Process.

e Higher value jewellery products are tested by
reputable and commonly recognized third-
party laboratories who issue testing certificates.

f) Excess and shortage of watch inventory

The Group strives to be leading retailer in bands
that have higher consumer appreciation and
consequently stronger profit yield. In order to
achieve this leading position, we:

e maintain close business relationship and
communication with watch manufacturers to
strive for optimal and timely supply; and

e systematically review inventory with updated

sales forecasts to determine appropriate
inventory level.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED # 2 x kB HR A

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§

s AXAEEBEAAMTHBEBERZ
SEEXRGTERK > WwHEEER
*Qmﬁlauuffi(&?%%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ

st~ HEEERIEHAR
N2 0E) BRRTES

s EBBEBHHEEEBMER
2 BEREBEEESENRE
EREND D ERE > UKE
@ET%%%E?%H%E

ETHEEMED -

s FMEREBEERIAKBZE
mERE > SEAREET
B TE& R T TE
TS > ABHEEHHE
EEETEETAETRR
"%MDEO

s HASEMNELREREU
BERE R G MEL 0 I
ERNERBEEREERE
L%ﬁﬂﬁh%mml@%
IR EITIRE o

s BEEBENKEEMERY
EEE%&KZWEWM_

HE un:l: TT /»/\//J ﬁéi\é;%t@
RFBE o

B E IR N

FEBBINEERHEESTK
By G R B E B B AL > fE T
ESEsmMBk=E - SRS
EFHAL > M

s HBRNEHMRFEUINE
BRAGREBE > UFNRE
MERENHE ; &

o REEFMNIHEEREE AR
B HRES UBEEAE
HNEGKIF -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stock loss or theft

Since our stock items are easily concealable, the
Group places very much attention on safeguarding
them with all practicable measures as follows:

security systems for stock locations including
but not limited to alarm systems, CCTV
monitoring and data backup;

daily stock-count and half-yearly full stock-
take at shops using RFID (Radio Frequency
Identification) tagging technology;

irregular and random checks conducted by
Sales Audit Team to ensure compliance;

procedures and approval requirements for
stock transfer, and use of security guarded
service;

regular training to staff on inventory management
best practices and theft prevention protocols;

and

insurance coverage.

Anti-money laundering

Non-compliance with applicable anti-money
laundering laws would adversely affect the
Group's business and reputation. We shall:

rely on the dedicated compliance management
team to oversee AML efforts and ensure
adherence to legal and regulatory obligations;

maintain the comprehensive AML framework,
including AML policy and guidelines, customer
due diligence approach and transaction
monitoring systems;

Cooperate with financial institutions and
regulatory bodies during case investigation to
ensure alignment with AML best practices;
and

Conduct regular AML training workshops
with scenario-based testing and establish an
i-Learning platform for the staff.
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The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness of
the Risk Control Systems of the Group for the Year. The
Audit Committee and the Board, upon reviewing the Risk
Control Systems, were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas of the Risk Control Systems.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a dividend policy setting out the
principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and final
dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attributable to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of the factors as stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i)
cash flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash
available, financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii)
market environment and challenges; and (iv) future
development and investment opportunities. The declaration of
dividends or recommendation on such payment shall be
subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations including
but not limited to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
and the Articles.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Shareholders’ Communication Policy (available
on the website of the Company) sets out the strategies,
practices and commitment for maintaining ongoing and
effective communication with the Shareholders, both individual
and institutional, and in appropriate circumstances, the
investment community at large so as to enable them to engage
with the Company and exercise their rights as Shareholders in
an informed manner. To this end, the Company strives to
ensure that all Shareholders have ready and timely access to
all publicly available information of the Group. To facilitate
communication with the Shareholders and the investment
community, the Company has established various
communication channels, as follows: (i) the holding of AGMs
and extraordinary general meetings, if any, which may be
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convened for specific purposes to provide opportunities for the
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
releases providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company'’s
website at https://www.EmperorWatchJewellery.com; (iv) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (v)
meeting with investors and analysts when necessary.

General presentations are made when financial results are
announced and dialogue with institutional Shareholders is
made from time to time. Shareholders and investors are
welcome to visit the Company's website and to raise enquiries
through our Investor Relations Department whose contact
details are available on the Company’'s website and the
“Corporate Information and Key Dates"” section of this annual
report.

The Chairperson of the Board and the chairperson/members of
the Board Committees, appropriate management executives
and the independent auditor (as the case may be) are available
to attend the general meetings to answer questions from the
Shareholders.

The Company shall review the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication
and engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy was properly in place
during the Year and remains effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:
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Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings may request the Directors to call a general meeting
of the Company. The requesting Shareholders must state in
their request the general nature of the business to be dealt
with and may include the text of a resolution to be moved at
the meeting. The request may consist of several documents in
like form and may be sent to the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary in hard
copy form or in electronic form and must be authenticated by
the requesting Shareholders. Having verified request, the
Board will convene a general meeting within 21 days. Such
meeting must be held on a date not more than 28 days after
the date of the notice convening the meeting and such notice
must include notice of the resolution.

If the Directors do not within 21 days as stated above to call a
general meeting, the Shareholders representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call
a general meeting, but the meeting so convened must be
called for a date not more than 3 months after the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call a meeting.

Shareholder(s) representing (i) at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders; or (ii) at least 50 Shareholders
having a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM may
request the Company to circulate a notice of a resolution to be
moved at that meeting. Such request must identify the
resolution to be moved at the AGM, must be authenticated by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and sent to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary in hard copy form or in
electronic form not later than 6 weeks before the relevant AGM
or if later, the time when the notice of AGM is despatched.

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company's website.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company'’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be
directed to the Investor Relations Department of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company's constitutional
documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tomatsu (“Deloitte”) is independent and had recommended
the Board to propose its re-appointment as the Company's
independent auditor at the 2025 AGM. During the Year, Deloitte
had rendered audit services and non-audit services to the
Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is
set out as follows:

Services rendered

EREB WS
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Fees paid/payable

FRie {4 AR 5 Bt HEHGER
HK$'000
FE5T
Audit services 2,618
28R 5
Non-audit services:
IR BIARS -
- Agreed-upon procedures for continuing connected transactions 160
TEREXZEMEIRT
- Review of preliminary results announcement 10
BRI EEBLS
- Other compliance service 7

Hith & R RFS
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TO THE MEMBERS OF

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
REERHERRAE

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 71 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “"Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Yo 37 A% BRI R

Pl E % F IR

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REEBIZEIBEARZHEMITHEE A G
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the BEZAHABIGEHERRITEREENEE-
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ZAZEHMITN EBEZERGEESMHFREREELL
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HFEBEAFIEFEHRER  MAEHMILEEE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming EBEEZEXRER o

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

FREZEER

Valuation of inventories - Jewelleries held for resale

FE-HIFBEEXE 241

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TZBMITNMEERRERER

We identified the valuation of inventories - jewelleries
held for resale as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
estimation associated with determining the amount of
write-down for inventories.

AZEMMITREFE —FFEEREZLERA—EHE
REZEFE RERTRNEEGEGRSMBRRERLM
ETHNEE NI MNAEEFEMRASRER B 25t

In estimating the amount of write-down for inventories
- jewelleries held for resale, it is the Group's policy to
review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically based on the condition of the items and the
market condition. The management of the Group
reviews regularly the suitability of the write-down policy
and the amount of write-down for inventories that are
based on the estimation by considering factors as
detailed in the note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements in relation to the write-down for inventories.
In addition, the management appoints an independent
professional gemmologist to perform valuation on
certain jewellery items as reference for write-down
consideration.
REstFE—FEEELKEZ M EER > E5£H
ZHEARBEEERIETACHENFEZ &
REE  ESEETEENREBERGESMBRRMT
AFHABREFEEMRZE RRARMIEZ G5t > TR
SRR BEY R FEMREEE - IS BIEE
NEE—SBEUEXEBERETMUBETHEERRE
THEEFAMBAERZSE -

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the appropriateness
of valuation of inventories - jewelleries held for resale
included:

BT EEFE-FIFRERE 2 GMEREM
ZiRFEE

e Obtaining an understanding of management's
process of reviewing and evaluating net
realisable value of inventories - jewelleries;

s THREEEBMNKIGEEE-HKEZIERF
BZEF;

e Evaluating the write-down policy adopted by
the management with reference to primarily
current market conditions, historical and current
sales information, pricing policy and strategies,
costs necessary to sell inventories, inventory
realisation plan and conditions of inventories;

e FEBERTHRA-BEKREAHEEL T
BHERRRE - BEFENHNERE - FEE
RSt 8 AR 5Tk B IR JE PR ER A DO BRI R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter

PREZEER

Valuation of inventories - Jewelleries held for resale

FE-FHIFBEEXE Z41E

PIRE&EE &

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TEZBMITNMEERRERER

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount
of inventories - jewelleries held for resale is
HK$2,454,397,000, net of write-down of HK$142,228,000,
which represents 47% of the net assets of the Group.

tz irE MR R M EE4FR IR ER - 102024128318 » ??

—FFEERE 2 RE B £2,454,397,00078 7T >

?EI BRI 142,228,000 7T » HHE R %%iﬁéﬁéfﬁ
ZAT%°
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Evaluating net realisable value of inventories
assessed by management, on a sample basis,
with reference to the selling prices of similar
products;
EEEESZREEMmZHEBHATMLN
FEMNTEEFE ;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
gemmologist and obtaining an understanding of
the scope of work and the terms of engagement;
and

TEEYUEXERETEM AR EHREER
Mo T ERE TR E BRI ;

Understanding the valuation process carried out
by the independent professional gemmologist
on selected jewellery items and checking the
carrying amounts of selected jewellery items to
the jewellery appraisal report to test if these
items were recorded at lower of cost and net
realisable value.

THRENEEEAECAFMAGERERKER
BRER U SRE LIRS PR ERE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Y 37 BLG R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Y 37 BLG R S

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor's report is Wong, Ka I.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

SR N AT N &

e E

2024 2023
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B = FET FATT
Revenue WA 5 5,230,331 4,823,223
Cost of sales & PR A (3,749,388) (3,372,942)
Gross profit EF 1,480,943 1,450,281
Other income Hmg A 6 25,657 14,802
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEZ (992,131) (932,960)
Administrative expenses TR (148,161) (137,802)
Other gains or losses EH & o k5 18 (25,151) (16,361)
Finance costs EE= N 7 (24,119) (10,228)
Profit before tax BRH2 B a A 8 317,038 367,732
Taxation I8 10 (60,301) (68,513)
Profit for the year FEiEA 256,737 299,219
Other comprehensive expense FEEMEEBES
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HEOSEEN D HEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmzEH
Exchange differences arising on MBBIINEBESE
translation of foreign operations ZERER (7,304) (4,033)
Total comprehensive income NABHEB ANEG
for the year and attributable to FEZEBALEZE
owners of the Company 249,433 295,186
Earnings per share - basic SREFN-EAK 12 HK3.79 cents#{ll HK4.41 cents A1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
&r o B AR R R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

R2024E12831H

2024 2023
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B = FET FATT
Non-current assets JERENE E
Property, plant and equipment M~ B RRE 13 1,383,443 1,478,611
Right-of-use assets FTREEE 14 374,882 276,269
Rental deposits MERE 16 97,382 91,636
Deposits paid for acquisition of B ZE ~ B RRE
property, plant and equipment zBefEE 16 9,736 2,700
Deferred tax assets FIERIBE & 23 5,094 -
1,870,537 1,849,216
Current assets mMBEE
Inventories 78 15 3,003,428 3,060,276
Right to returned goods asset BRE#EE 21 1,289 1,086
Receivables, deposits and FEIRIB s e &
prepayments TR RIE 16 116,704 177,341
Amounts due from related FEWRAE A BIFRIE
companies 22 578 797
Time deposits with original FEISAEA=@EA U Lt
maturity over three months I E #TFERR 17 33,459 160,898
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEHEY 17 916,360 458,750
4,071,818 3,859,148
Current liabilities ik 2 =R
Payables and accrued charges FETRIB K FEST & AR 18 202,375 269,059
Lease liabilities HE&E 19 216,477 177,501
Contract liabilities =R IERE 20 30,193 12,996
Refund liabilities BREE 21 2,267 1,712
Amounts due to related FENRAE A BIRRIA
companies 22 15,186 4,513
Taxation payable FEIRIB 64,690 65,313
531,188 531,094
Net current assets TRENEEFE 3,540,630 3,328,054

P72 EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED #E 2 ##x%EHIR A

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Gr B 5 IR I i 3R
AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
$£20245F12831H

2024 2023
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FBT
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAR 23 1,221 3,456
Lease liabilities HEaRE 19 195,856 127,126
197,077 130,582
Net assets BEFE 5,214,090 5,046,688
Capital and reserves BEREE
Share capital N 24 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserves =5 25 1,729,938 1,562,536
Total equity s 5,214,090 5,046,688

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 151 were H71EF151B 2 2 & M R KT B 11202553
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson B0 EEEZ G H EREET)EE > W H T

20 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: EEAAEE
CINDY YEUNG FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA
wER SEEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
S =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A m R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
BE2024F12831HIEFE
Share Merger Other Capital ~Translation  Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RE Gl Ettlik EdHE  ERHE  REEH Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEn FTEn FTEn TEn FEn FTEn TEn
(note 25(a)) (note 25(b)) (note 25(c))
(M3k25(a)  (W3E25(b)  (M3E25(c)

At1 January 2023 1*2023E181H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2529 (29893) 1,787,469 4,845,059
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - 299,219 299,219
Exchange differences arisingon ~ BEBNEREEZ

translation of foreign operations ~ EREE - - - - (4,033) - (4,083)
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ FEZE (B%)

income for the year N 1 - - - - (4033) 299219 295,186
Final dividend paid for 2022 2022FEMZEARE

(note 11) (Birs=11) - - - - - (42,033) (42,033)
Interim dividend paid for 2023~ 2023EB{F 2 R ERE

(note 11) (MyzE11) - - - - - (51,524)  (51524)
At 31 December 2023 1*2023E128318 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (33,926) 1,993,131 5,046,688
At 1 January 2024 12024F1R1H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (33,926) 1,993,131 5,046,688
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - 256737 256,737
Exchange differences arisingon ~ BEBNEREEZ

translation of foreign operations ~ ERZH - - - - (7,304) - (7,304)
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ EE2E (X

income for the year o - - - - (7,304) 256,787 249,433
Final dividend paid for 2023 023FEF 2 KHRE

(note 11) (MyzE11) - - - - - (37,965)  (37,965)
Interim dividend paid for 2024~ 204E Btz hERE

(note 11) (MzE11) - - - - - (44,086)  (44,066)
At 31 December 2024 12024128318 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (41,230) 2,167,837 5,214,090
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

malleiiER

2024 2023
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FE&T TFET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXRH
Profit before tax BR 15 Al & A 317,038 367,732
Adjustments for: PEE
Write-down for inventories (reversal EFE MR (7 & B Mo
of write-down for inventories) 122,671 (1,092)
Depreciation of property, plant Mz s e R EITE
and equipment 141,141 140,684
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 277,706 255,340
Impairment losses recognised in T~ B R BEESR
respect of property, ZBBERE
plant and equipment 5,127 -
Impairment losses recognised in PMEAEEERST
respect of right-of-use assets 2 BB B 9,375 -
Loss on disposals/write-off of HE GEIEYIE - 3R
property, plant and equipment Vo&=-3 i SF 2,916 2,588
Gain arising from termination/ HE&IE MESmESE
modification of leases Z W (328) (931)
Interest income FE WA (24,791) (14,595)
Finance costs ME R A 24,119 10,228
Operating cash flows before movements Kit&EBEESEBNE 2
in working capital REFENE 874,974 759,954
Increase in inventories EFEZHEMm (71,013) (361,670)
(Increase) decrease in right to returned R E#EE & (M) m /D
goods asset (203) 200
Decrease (increase) in receivables, FEULFRIE ~ & K TR 7B
deposits and prepayments B (38 1) 59,625 (41,317)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due FE IS BE i R B R IE R 2D (B n)
from related companies 219 (15)
(Decrease) increase in payables and FEIIBRESTE&ER
accrued charges GRLZL) 180 (51,787) 104,500
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities &#&&E M Gal 17,346 (384)
Increase (decrease) in refund liabilities  BFE& &m0 G&l) 555 (341)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to  FE{J BE & A SR IEE N GRi2L)
related companies 10,662 (2,441)
Net cash generated from operations REFMBZIREFEE 840,378 458,486
Income taxes paid BETFTER (67,941) (54,892)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETHFRFSZAREE
ACTIVITIES 772,437 403,594
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN AN =
SEHeRmER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

2024 2023
NOTE HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 54 FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEED
Refunds of rental deposits REMREEE 7,696 3,043
Payment of rental deposits HEEENER (14,611) (19,072)
Payment of deposits paid for WHEY)ZE ~ B RERHEZ
acquisition of property, plant [SENEZ AN
and equipment (9,736) (2,700)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMZE - KERZHEZ
property, plant and equipment FriS18 291 -
Purchase of property, plant BEWE - WBRHRE
and equipment (69,832) (99,201)
Withdrawal of time deposits with IENRIAEA=EA
original maturity over three months W _EBIEHRER 205,585 336,317
Placement of time deposits with EHREEIHHEA=EA
original maturity over three months UL _EBIEHRFRR (78,146) (297,207)
Interest received BUF E 20,763 12,336
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REEBFRE FRA) 2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RE3E 62,010 (66,484)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Dividends paid BKRE 32 (82,031) (93,557)
Interest paid BEHE 32 (24,119) (10,228)
Bank borrowings raised BEEEZIRTEE 32 80,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEE 32 (80,000) -
Repayments of lease liabilities ERESE 32 (268,905) (240,597)
NET CASH USED IN MEREFTAZREFEHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (375,055) (344,382)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RERREEEWEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (iRi‘L) %% 459,392 (7,272)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYIZREREEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR 458,750 466,192
Effect of foreign exchange SNEEXEH &
rate changes (1,782) (170)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZATRIRESEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 916,360 458,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the "Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding
company is Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group Holdings
Limited ("Emperor W&J Holdings") which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"). The directors of the
Company (the “Directors"”) consider that its ultimate
holding company is Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI. The
address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is 25/F, Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessey Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

2.

P.78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the Group's annual period beginning on 1 January 2024
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&r o RS i 2 M B
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EEMITREZEEITISBMBERE

TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS HRFEHEER 4
- continued
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEETEREREEAMUTEBEMBERSE
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have EH 2T REEBFTE BT B S ZER
been issued but are not yet effective: g5t &R]
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification SEVBREENRRR SRIEZHERME
and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial ERMBREE VA HEN
Instruments® FIRZEITX
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature- EEMERGENRNR FTREBERERLEEEN
and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity? EANBRSEA 2EHP
FIRZEITX
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets SEVBREEAFI0S REERERENTY
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its REBGHERENE AECEIECEE
Associate or Joint Venture' P& HETIE
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS FRMERGEN G  HEUMEREEDGHEL
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards - R 2B ZEEE-S1e
Volume 118
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? BRGHENBAN B2 o Rk
PACHE
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in ERAMBREENF8FE HERRZEFIRRE
Financial Statements*
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ! REFEEEBRN 2 2RAENFERBEN -
determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, 2 1120251 B1H S 2 B AR FEE B £
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. 8 R2026F1 B1HE 2 BHEBHNFEERB £
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 4 R2027H1 B1HE Z BB FEE B £ e
Except for the new HKFRS Accounting Standard mentioned BRI M BB B RS ERE
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all STEAS . EETEHERMAESTBYH
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no WEERFER ZESTAN ] B AR
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in B AEHGREMBRRENERTE -

the foreseeable future.
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P.80

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

- continued

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements (“"HKFRS 18")

HKFRS 18, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements ("HKAS 1"). This
new HKFRS Accounting Standards, while carrying forward
many of the requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new
requirements to present specified categories and defined
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provides
disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the financial statements and
improves aggregation and disaggregation of information to
be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some
HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation of
the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future
financial statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&r B B RS e 22 BT 5T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RN ESHBRRNKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FEHRER
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

P.82

Basis of consolidation - continued

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting
policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 Lease
("HKFRS 16") at inception of the contract. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. (R SIERRNKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Leases - continued

For contract which the supplier has substitution rights
to substitute alternative assets, and it has the practical
ability to do so and would be benefited economically
from the exercise of its right to substitute the asset
throughout the period of use, the Group does not have
the rights to use the identified asset and does not
account them as a lease under HKFRS 16.

The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

HE =&

MEERREREEER T —BE
ZEBRBNGHAMES BHAGER
FENGUEAT S - MR B RS BB fE AR AR
BIIEEBREENENTRE &
EETEREMNEREHNEERIL
BREJKRATBYHRSENS
16558 FRYHEE -

REBFAEEA

EHEEE

EREEEZMAEE !

s HEAGZUIPESRE;

o REBAMS AL Z(ERE
B &

s AERERBMEEFRETSHN
BRAEREEEHERRBAFMT
FTRRE 2R Z B2 PRELER
5T A A ©

ERBEEERMAE  BREAEDR

SHTERBERIE > UiHE &R

EREMHEFLRAE -

ERAREEEHPRNRER AR
e -

FEBREGEEMBRNERAFER
REESYRERER -

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 2 2§23k BEHRE 5 P83

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o M5 AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

P.84

Leases - continued
The Group as a lessee - continued
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9") and
initially measured at fair value.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

Variable lease payment that are based on certain
percentage of sales are recognised as expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes, are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to contributions.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BtHREN &

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued
Employee benefits - continued ESHEF =
Retirement benefit costs - continued RN A A — 42
The Group accounts for the employer's MPF AEERKBEFRENREERESH
contributions expected to be offset as a deemed AEAGSEREER%E: (RER&))
employee contribution towards the Long Service EENEERBEHRETISE
Payment (“LSP") obligation. The Group applies the B XEBRXKAEEGERNRE
practical expedient in HKAS 19.93(b) to account for 1993 RRENBEREE 25t MU
employer’'s MPF voluntary contributions as the HEFTRBETERERRIERERESM
deemed employee contributions as a reduction of the ;o EARMAER RS AR RS A A
service cost in the period in which the related service ZHBARK e BB ERMES
is rendered. For mandatory contributions, the Group REERBEEZF£R3E19.93(a)
applies HKAS 19.93(a) and attributes the contributions & B ERFBARSBH > UtBEER
to period of services for the purpose of calculation of B o KRB H B 5t & BB 7E 0
the negative service costs. The estimated amount of BAREERBEHRNELENESE
future benefit is determined after deducting the MPERBTEENERBHARE
negative service cost arising from the accrued benefits BT -

derived from the Group's MPF contributions that have
been vested with employees.

Short-term employee benefits FAHIESEF

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the RHEERAN R ESRHRFE R
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be FEHEFENZRMREN S EE
paid as and when employees rendered the services. o MBENRARERMNEEIE &AM
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an o

expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to BEZEHSEFN BINITERFEK
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual F/R) IHRIRER BN SR B R
leave) after deducting any amount already paid. BE-
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL EitHEREN &

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued
Taxation - continued RIE—#=
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the HEEREENEEEIR  EIER
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in BEEMBERERNBBERNARE
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, BzREUNERBBEGE RSB
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been THABAHEITZRE (RRE) A
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the HIE o

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets EERMBEEAEEZFERER
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from S oHAER R ERPES
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of REAz A A URCHEETEELEE
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying REaEZREE -

amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing Mt EREERIETRAEEE KB
transactions in which the Group recognises the right- AEHEEENHERZHNELEIRIE
of use assets and the related lease liabilities, the me > AEEBELEERNERES
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are RERAREEEEEHEEE
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions MEEESEMANMRRIE R KE
are attributable to the lease liabilities and ultimate BEEENREREANBEERZM
costs incurred for provisions for restoration, the Group S AERDHMEESEURMIE
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the BEREHAEERRESBST£L
lease liabilities, and the provisions for restoration and FBI2MAFHRBRTE - ZEBEREE
the related assets separately. The Group recognises a AREEELXNMERERRNEH 4
deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities and the EE >UAEESITRINEREEER
provisions for restoration to the extent that it is SRR At AR > HRHEEEaE
probable that taxable profit will be available against RREREHEBNELRES E &M
which the deductible temporary difference can be EIEIRIBEE ©

utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences arising from right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when EALTEEBRRBRBIRNEEE
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax B RBRBEER > BEMERRE—R
assets against current tax liabilities and when they BRE—ERNEBBWMERA
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable R EERIBEENMABGBHSFIIR
entity by the same taxation authority. tH °
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Taxation - continued

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements where the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.
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P.90

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indicator that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the smallest group of
cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets - continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is determined on a
weighted average basis for gold and specific
identification basis for watches and other jewellery
items depending on the nature of the inventory. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price

BERkEZZEY

RERREFEYREEHFBNRR
xEY B

(a) RE > HOEFRERSREHF
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(b) REZEY HEEEH(ES
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AfRe B 2ZFEMFREIMEF
EREEEE > Mgk HEMIkER
BRFRIRBIEEHNEEEE > R
FEEZMHE . AIBRFEEFE
LEstEBRFAGSETHEMS

A e BITHEMBRASEHE
EEEOEEMA R AEEETTH
ENREEHIFBEMAE o

for inventories less all estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Cost necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to
their original condition, as required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, are recognised at the date of
inception of the lease at the directors' best estimate of
the expenditure that would be required to restore the
assets, estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted
as appropriate for new circumstances.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with Customers ("HKFRS
15"). Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period.

- continued
Provisions B E
Restoration provisions R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. (RSl SIMFERENKEREE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL EHBRER -2
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial instruments - continued ETHTAH-#Z

Financial assets TRIBE

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEEZ 7 HEREEFE

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are FMEaTIKRGE2eHEERE R RE
subsequently measured at amortised cost with interest 55 B A B2 (5 A B R A =K W SR AV A
income recognised using the effective interest BUWAGE !
method:
e the financial asset is held within a business model e FEEMEBEECZEHEAXBENS
whose objective is to collect contractual cash WIREHNRERE ; &
flows; and
e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates e SRR IEEBRMESLZRE
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal MBAIKASNAERKFEEAR
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. FZFE o
Impairment of financial assets THLEE A
Under the expected credit loss (“ECL") approach, the REBHAEEBRE(AHEERS
Group assesses ECL associated with its financial /) 7% NEBRERELEERA
assets based on historical data and forward looking EHEENTTHEESMEEMRBN
information. The impairment methodology applied TBHAEERmE - PREAM Hfﬁﬁ;i
depends on whether there has been a significant BAREERBEEEEILM -
increase in credit risk. The impairment model under %Eﬁ‘%ﬁ%’—%,ﬁﬂ%95%IET/J'JZTE7FE_E
HKFRS 9 applies to financial assets measured at BRANREBERNEASAENERE
amortised cost. The Group applies the simplified Eoe AEBXREBBIERZERES
approach to recognise lifetime ECL for trade FEWHRIEBENEZREREERE &
receivables. As regards other receivables, rental REMEWHRIE - BEZRE - BRI
deposits, time deposits with original maturity over HEB&E=EANERERKIBITHE
three months and bank balances, the Group considers B AERRAZSEREERRRK
that they have low credit risk and hence recognises B> HitpzFEE EB12EA /Y
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") for such items. BHEEEE (M2EABEHEEE
#) o
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HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. (R SIERRNKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and amounts due to related companies) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

EMTH-#
TRHERENED

EEBRETZEHRETTAT
RIBFASII N LB ZAT AT
BEAETTAZERFATHE
BeiEm iR -

#EFETA

BmTEAFZHEBNRINRMES
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. GG SHBRRRNIKEREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBRER &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

P.96

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

A7 o W B AR B

st rHEERRZEEEKR

1S 18 P BfY SE 3P & 2 A 52 Bl & 5T BUR B -
EFANRRHEMEKBRETEMZEZEE
rkEEREEFHGERERE - G5 K
HEARRDUBEERADBABEBZ
HMRARBER - BRGERIEFRN
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4,

P.98

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

In estimating the amount of write-down for inventories -
jewelleries held for resale, it is the Group's policy to review
the net realisable value of inventories periodically based
on the condition of the items and the market condition.
The management of the Group reviews regularly the
suitability of write-down policy and estimates the amount
of write-down for inventories based primarily current
market conditions, historical and current sales information,
pricing policy and strategies, costs necessary to sell
inventories, inventory realisation plan and conditions of
inventories to identify slow-moving items. In addition, the
management also appoints an independent professional
gemmologist to perform valuation on certain jewellery
items as reference for write-down consideration. The
Group estimates the net realisable value of inventories at
the end of the reporting period and makes write-down.
When the subsequent estimated net realisable value of
inventories is less than the original cost, a material write-
down may arise. As at 31 December 2024, the carrying
amount of inventories for jewelleries held for resale is
HK$2,454,397,000 (net of write-down for inventories of
HK$142,228,000) (31 December 2023: HK$2,496,990,000
(net of write-down for inventories of HK$56,177,000)).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents sales of products to retail customers
and commission income from services provided.

For sales of products to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
the retail shops. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.

For commission income, revenue is recognised when the
Group is entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods provided by the other party to the
customers at the retail shop (i.e. the Group is an agent).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

- continued
All revenue are recognised at a point in time.

The Group operates a customer loyalty programme for
sales through the retail shops, where retail customers are
awarded points for purchases made which entitle them to
redeem award points as sales discounts in the future. The
transaction price is allocated to the product and the award
points on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
customer loyalty award points expire every year and
customers can redeem the award points any time before
the specified expiration date. Revenue from the award
points is recognised when the award points are redeemed
or expired. Contract liabilities are recognised until the
award points are redeemed or expired.

Revenue is recognised for sales which are considered
highly probable and where a significant reversal of the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. A refund
liability is recognised for sales in which revenue has not
yet been recognised. Information about the refund
liabilities is provided in note 21.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), the Executive Director of the Group, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on the locations of the
operations. This is also the basis upon which the Group is
arranged and organised. The Group's operating segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are operations
located in Hong Kong, Macau, The People's Republic of
China excluding Hong Kong and Macau (“PRC") and other
regions in Asia Pacific (representing Singapore and
Malaysia). The revenue generated by each of the operating
segments is mainly derived from sales of watch and
jewellery. No operating segments identified by the CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

All the sales of products and commission income are
completed within one year. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. MARZEBER =&
- continued
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTAAEEBRARFEZZZHREEK
results by reportable and operating segment: EDEaI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEF20245F12A31HILEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  AsiaPacific  Elimination Consolidated
54 Y hE TAHEMHE fii g g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET T#RT T#T Ti#n T#ERT T#ET
Revenue LON
External sales SHRIFE 2,905,643 317,639 1,350,806 638,054 - 5212142
Inter-segment sales* AEEHE 245,383 23,423 - - (268,806) -
Commission income EEALON 17,539 650 - - - 18,189
3,168,565 341,712 1,350,806 638,054 (268,806) 5,230,331
* Inter-segmentsalesare  * HEEHEE
charged at cost N
Segment profit A EER 316,467 39,648 113,767 111,264 - 581,146
Other income HEfA 25,657
Corporate expenses =453 (240,495)
Other gains or losses Atz 38 (25,151)
Finance costs MEMAK (24,119)
Profit before tax FRiRATER 317,038
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WMARDERER =&

- continued
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B ZE2023FE12H31HLEEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  Asia Pacific Elimination  Consolidated
i TP hE TAEMME gz )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#Er TET TiEr T#ER TET TiEr
Revenue ON

External sales SARIBE 2,495,985 295,075 1,372,918 644,358 - 4,808,336
Inter-segment sales* DEEHE 128,968 22,097 - - (151,065) -
Commission income (EEAON 14,026 861 - - - 14,887
2,638,979 318,033 1,372,918 644,358 (151,085) 4,823,223

* Inter-segment salesare  * DHEHEE

charged at cost B A

Segment profit AEEF 232,908 48,680 210,017 117,797 - 609,402
Other income EfA 14,802
Corporate expenses PEREX (229,883)
Other gains or losses Atk R (16,361)
Finance costs RER A (10,228)
Profit before tax BRiRAEnR 367,732

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating

segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit
earned from each segment without allocation of other
income, corporate expenses including depreciation
charged on the self-owned flagship shop, other gains or
losses and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

No assets and liabilities are included in the measures of
the Group's segment reporting that are regularly reviewed
by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities are presented.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. MARZEBER =&
- continued
Amounts included in the measure of segment result: STADHERTEZETEE -
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE2024F12831HILEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  AsiaPacific Unallocated Consolidated
5# g hE SEAHMHE KR &8

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR F#ERr F#r TR F#r T#Rr

(Note ¢c)
(¥zE c)
Depreciation of property, ME - BBRRENE
plant and equipment 28,091 4,537 9,248 4,457 94,808 141,141
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FEEEENE
assets (Note a) (Frzta) 203,379 15,459 35,670 10,811 12,387 271,706
Expenses relating torented ~ SEFHAEYERH
premises (Note b) fiz (fizED) 1,295 2,297 103,147 14,615 1,356 122,710
Write-down for inventories & il 29,183 6,494 86,994 - - 122,671
Cost of sales (excluded HEME (FBHE
write-down for inventories)  ZEHUA) 2,064,624 212,857 901,738 447,498 - 3,626,717
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B E2023F12B31HIEEFE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  AsiaPacific  Unallocated  Consolidated
&E g hE mAEMME RO =5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TER TER

(Note c)
(2% c)
Depreciation of property, MEBBRRENE
plant and equipment 33,560 1,776 6,304 3,385 95,159 140,684
Depreciation of right-of-use  FERREENE
assets (Note a) (Fizta) 195,202 7,548 32,356 8,612 11,622 255,340
Expenses relating torented ~ EFEYEBEZ
premises (Note b) B (fiztb) 8417 63 104,501 15,394 821 129,196
Reversal of write-down for T2 & i F &l
inventories - - (1,092) - - (1,092)
Cost of sales (excluded HERE (FBE
reversal of write-down for ~ ZE#T)
inventories) 1,800,665 208,640 912,837 451,892 - 3,374,034
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSEREN —#&
- continued
Notes: B E -
(@) The management aligns with the industry norm which includes the (a) BEERNSTERS REAREENTE
depreciation of right-of-use assets in the measure of segment result FFADEEGEHE BRSTAREEENT
but does not include the interest on lease liabilities. o
(b) Expenses relating to rented premises include expenses relating to (b)y HEEMEERzHSZ GFETEHEN
variable lease payments and rental expenses for contracts which REBHAIREFTHZBEYEAEEEE
the landlords have the substantive right to substitute the rented HEBRENENOHEHEZ -
premises.
(c) Unallocated represents amount used for office and depreciation (c) KXOBEEBRBAERBREREM/ENIT
charged on the self-owned flagship shop. EERCSH -
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its FEERBEEZERERBT Z WA D
major products and services: (I
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Sales of watch tH & i ik 3,319,145 3,465,488
Sales of jewellery HERE 1,892,997 1,342,848
Commission income - Watch WA —fE#k 18,189 14,887
5,230,331 4,823,223
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WMARSBEREX -4
- continued
Information about the Group’s non-current assets, EREEMEMBUEER - AEH
excluding rental deposits and deferred tax assets, FERBMEE HERERIBEERIEE ER
presented based on the geographical location of the assets b 2ERIGEBEEINWT -

are detailed below:

As at 31 December 2024 420245128318
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  Asia Pacific Consolidated
&8 el HE DAHMME g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,599,115 50,986 106,061 11,899 1,768,061
As at 31 December 2023 [12023%F12H31H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific  Consolidated
55 Ed HE  EAHMME =24
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Non-current assets FERHEE 1,643,522 8,797 79,603 25,658 1,757,580
No revenue from a single customer contributed 10% or FPMEFE IERBEAERE—FR
more of the Group's total revenue for both years. Z WA LA E B U A ARZE10% S ko
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HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HfthilgA
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Interest income from bank deposits  $R17FEIF B WA 20,763 12,336
Interest income from rental deposits A& Z % F B UL A 4,028 2,259
Others HAith 866 207
25,657 14,802

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEF R 587 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBME 23,532 10,228
24,119 10,228
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. FRIRATIEF
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Profit before tax has been arrived at BRI ATEF 2308k (GTA)
after charging (crediting): TFIEE
Auditors' remuneration % SN BN <&
- Current year —REE 3,699 3,695
- Overprovision in prior years — BT FEBEEEE (17) (240)
Cost of inventories included in cost HERARNZEERAX (B1F
of sales (included write-down for FEMUR122,671,000E 7T
inventories of HK$122,671,000 (2023%F : FZ & iR B o]
(2023: reversal of write-down for 1,092,000 7))
inventories of HK$1,092,000)) 3,740,129 3,361,066
Depreciation of property, plant M S REITE
and equipment
- retail shops —EE 5 138,667 137,606
- offices —WAE 2,474 3,078
141,141 140,684
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE
- retail shops —ZEE B 265,319 243,718
- offices | YNES 12,387 11,622
277,706 255,340
Staff costs, including Directors' BTMA > BEEEME
remuneration (note 9(a)) (fF=£9(a))
- salaries and other benefits costs — (e REMBENER 342,240 313,020
- retirement benefits —IRURTEH T8I (R
scheme contributions 28,041 26,976
370,281 339,996
Included in other gains or losses: SFAEMK R
Impairment losses recognised in TANZE ~ 2R R SR
respect of property, plant and ZBEE 8
equipment 5,127 -
Impairment losses recognised in PEREEERST
respect of right-of-use assets ZRIEREE 9,375 -
Loss on disposals/write-off of HE SEIEYIE B
property, plant and equipment REZ KB 2,916 2,588
Gain arising from termination/ E?ﬂlﬂz/ﬂxﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬂi
modification of leases Z Wi (328) (931)
Net exchange losses PE 2 E5 18 3 58 8,061 14,704
25,151 16,361
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HE2024F12831HIEEE
9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS

9. EXKEEME

B 20244 K2023F 128318 1L F
EZENKRENMEEZMEEBW

Details of the emoluments paid and payable to the
Directors for the years ended 31 December 2024 and

2023 are as follows: e
For the year ended 31 December 2024 8 E20245F12A31HLLEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme Others
Fees  allowance payment  contributions (Note) Total
BIKER Ht
g HEREW RERBEY HE e (Mtz2) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR FiEn
Executive Directors ES
Ms. Cindy Yeung R 250 1,920 270 60 2,160 4,660
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky RRERLE
(Chief Executive) (fTBsas)
(resigned on 31 January 2024) (120241 B3I HEHT) 21 21 5 207
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BSELE 250 250
Ms, Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BHRLT 250 250
Independent Non-executive BUkdnESR
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BERLT 220 220
Mr, Liu Hing Hung BEERE 220 220
Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming BRBRE
(appointed on 19 March 2024) (R2024F3F19REZRMA) 173 173
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne BERLL
(passed away on 4 February 2024)  (R20242F4H &) 2 21
1,405 2,191 270 65 2,160 6,091
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

HE2024F12831HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS - continued

9. EEKEEME»~

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B ZE2023FE12H31HIEEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme Others
Fees allowance payment  contributions (Note) Total
BRI Ht
BE  FehEl RRRPEX HEEE (I30) s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors YE%
Ms. Cindy Yeung BHBELL 250 1920 - 60 2,160 4390
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky SEA%E
(Chief Executive) (THER)
(resigned on 31 January 2024) (R2024F1 A31BE) 250 2,953 - 60 - 3,263
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BSELE 250 - - - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BERLT 250 - - - - 250
Independent Non-executive BUdESR
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BERTL 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BEELE 220 - - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne BERLL
(assed away on 4 February 2024) (120242 B4R &t 220 - - - - 220
1,660 4873 - 120 2,160 8,813

Note: ffat . B E2024F12831H ILEFEE > FBH
BRLLRBEFTEAEBMNLD T KEHR
BAEBNREEEZEG 2 A8 X148
FRIE2,160,0007% 7T (20234 : 2,160,000

BIT) °

For the year ended 31 December 2024, a sum of
HK$2,160,000 (2023: HK$2,160,000) was paid to a company
controlled by Ms. Cindy Yeung for the provision of her
services relating to design and consulting services rendered

to the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE2024F12H31HILEFE
9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 9. EEREEME-—»
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in rEBZz AU iMEER > —11
the Group, one (2023: two) was Director whose (2023%F : ML) BAEF - WEZH
emoluments are included in note 9(a) above. The A 5 51 1% £ it MY 559(a)e &R T KU fiL
emoluments of the remaining four (2023: three) (2023%F 1 =) BE ZFHBNWOT :

individuals were as follows:

2024 2023

HKS$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FBT

Salaries and allowance e BoERL 6,749 4,082

Performance related incentive RIFRBIFX

payment 818 865
Retirement benefits scheme IBIKEBH 5T 8 =0

contributions 215 180

7,782 5,127

Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZFHMNBENT

Number of employees

EEAH

2024 2023

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T E
1,500,0007% 7T - 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8L E
2,000,0007% 7T 2 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 TTE
2,500,000/ 7T 2 -
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9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Py
o

P.110

Notes:

(0

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

The fees paid or payable to the Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors shown above were for
their services in connection with their services as the

Directors.

The salaries and allowance, performance related incentive
payment and retirement benefits scheme contributions paid or
payable to the Executive Directors shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The performance related incentive payment is a discretionary
bonus determined based on the financial performance of the

Group and the commission earned by selling the products.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Group or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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B 5E

(0

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

LRENREMRITEZERBIIERT
EFEZAENARENETESTMREM
ZRBER -

LRENHENRATEZZHERE
B RIREB R RRIRGEF 5t 8 X
ERENERERBD REEBEREM
RHZIRBAR -

REBRMAXDRAERZMBRER
& E MR AT EE 2 BIBTEAL.

B E2024%F 128310 &%2023F12831H
HFEE BEEEREIFAERERLEM
B o

B £2024F12831H K2023%F12831H
LEE  AERGEAERAEEES
A REHMES S ERNE > fF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

10. TAXATION 10. 18

2024 2023
HKS$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

The tax charge for the year comprises: FERIRIEL HEE :

Current year: KREE .

Hong Kong 5B 38,376 25,800
Macau P 6,877 7,828
PRC h 6,927 23,210
Other regions in Asia Pacific DARHMME 19,434 20,676
71,614 77,514

Overprovision in prior years: BEFEFEBREEG
Hong Kong =8 (2,228) (665)
Macau B PT (1,415) (3,066)
PRC s (369) (4,600)
(4,012) (8,331)
Deferred taxation (note 23) EIEFRIE (M5E23) (7,301) (670)
60,301 68,513

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

The Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated at
12% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is
25% for both years.

Singapore Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

RENESHRMAT  cESEEERE
22,000,0007 7T iz & 1 #28.25% 17 = 1
2 > ™ &8 #82,000,00078 T Z i@ A & 3%
16.5% R EHM o A7 & FI 151 i 4R 5
ERZEESRB G BEEL165% 2
B —MREER o

BEFERA MERMAEHSHERI Y &
ZeRBARSVERRITBE ARG
MEFEZEBNERGBEERR
WA Z16.5% & o

w18 E 2 BPIFT 1S/ SR IR 19 R (5T
HBEM Z12% 5 H ©

REREEEMIRETEERT
ED) REEFMBREEREN > XAQF
EREZNBARRMEFEZRES
25%°

w18 28 B 2 T 0 2 P 1S AR 29 4% 1 5t AR BR
AN Z217% 5t & °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

10. TAXATION - continued

Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for Malaysia
Income Tax has been made as the Company’s subsidiary
did not have any assessable profit arising from Malaysia
for the year ended 31 December 2023. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the estimated assessable profit was
offset by the unused tax loss brought forward from prior
years. Thus, no provision for Malaysia Income Tax has been
made.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 23.
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

10. IRIE— &

WAEEE 2 ERAEMAERGRMGE
SFIRE A Z224% 5t 8 o B E2023F 128
SIHLEFE > HRNA RN B A B I &
ﬁé%zfzﬁaﬁéiﬁm’é%m@ﬂ » At

TWERh R EBMIEHEE - 82
2024EE12)§31E¢£EF HET FER A
MR FFEEFTNREBRIEBEEM
i o AL WEMERAEMERIE
B o

R IR Z s I DI BB 5E230

AEEREBERGFEERD REMEEA
WRFTR Z BRI A A B AR WE

2024 2023
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before tax BRAR AT A 317,038 367,732
Tax charge at Hong Kong Profits Tax  #%16.5% 2 & B F13 R R XU
rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) Z 18 (20234 : 16 5%) 52,311 60,676
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RBIH0H3 B sz =~ MR 75
for tax purpose 16,989 14,296
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMBAZRBEE
for tax purpose (2,105) (2,532)
Effect of different tax rates of MEABINEMBE EZHEKE
subsidiaries operating in ZAREMEZEE
other jurisdictions 2,091 3,082
Tax effect of tax losses not B ARERRBEEZRBLE
recognised - 2,640
Tax effect of recognition of deductible 81+ 5 FZ K3 18 o & e 50
temporary difference in prior years ~ B ERFEREZ MK £
due to change in tax rules (3,844) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously R SRI KRR 2 MIBE 18
not recognised (1,129) (1,318)
Overprovision in respect of BEFE 2 BRERE
prior years (4,012) (8,331)
Taxation for the year FERIE 60,301 68,513

The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is used as this is the
domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of
the Group is substantially based. Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

11. DIVIDENDS 1.2
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividends recognised as BMIABEREEDIRZEKE !
distribution during the year:
2023 Final: HK0.56 cent 2023F K H] | §AR0.567E 1
(2023: 2022 final dividend: (20234 @ 2022F KR EARR B ¢
HKO0.62 cent) per share 0.6278 1) 37,965 42,033
2024 Interim: HKO0.65 cent 2024FHHA | T RR0.65E 1
(20283: interim dividend: (20234 : RHERR B :
HKO0.76 cent) per share 0.7681) 44,066 51,524
82,031 93,657
The board of Directors proposed the payment of a final B E2024F12B31HIEFEE  EE T E
dividend of HK0.45 cent (2023: HK0.56 cent) per share in KRR B & R0.458 L (20234 -
an aggregate amount of HK$32,655,000 (2023: 0568 1lll) » 48 & X8 49 #332,655,00078 7T
HK$37,965,000) for the year ended 31 December 2024 (20234 : 37,965,000/ 7T) » MEBE AR A
which is subject to approval by the shareholders of the BRE (TR REERRBFEARE L
Company (“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual HIEBAFOIEE °
general meeting.
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC 12. 8RB B
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable AR HEEANRBESREARBNTRE
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: YIRS -
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Profit for the year attributable to M BEESRERBNZ
owners of the Company for the KAB B AEG
purpose of basic earnings per share £ & Fll 256,737 299,219
2024 2023
Number of ordinary shares for the MEABEEREREBNZ
purpose of basic earnings per share Zi@EREE 6,779,458,129 6,779,458,129
No diluted earnings per share in both years was presented HIrmMEFETEEETBTEHEZE
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue iG> R MEEE R &Y 5

during both years. SERA o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 4% - S Rl
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
building  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELHE HENE &R -RER
BF HETHE e RE az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TET
COST [
At 1 January 2023 12023%F151H 1,800,000 268,719 133,500 1,334 2,203,553
Additions AE - 86,308 19,157 - 105,465
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (13,576) (5489) - (19,065)
Exchange realignment ERAE - 82 (111) (5) (34)
At 31 December 2023 120235128314 1,800,000 341,533 147,057 1,329 2,289,919
Additions wE - 31,326 23121 - 54,447
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (69,360) (6,445) (219) (76,024)
Exchange realignment ERAR - (558) (388) ©) (947)
At 31 December 2024 12024E12831H 1,800,000 302,941 163,345 1,109 2,267,395
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION B ERiA(E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2023 720231 A1H 373,370 209,551 102,912 1,310 687,143
Provided for the year FREE 92,081 35,905 12,683 15 140,684
Eliminated on disposals/write-off ~ H& /58 i 34 - (11,911) (4,566) - (16,477)
Exchange realignment ERRAE - 79 (116) (5) (42)
At 31 December 2023 120235128315 465,451 233,624 110913 1,320 811,308
Provided for the year FREE 92,334 38,548 15,259 - 141,141
Impairment losses recognised REGRIZAESSE
in profit or loss - 3,759 1,368 - 5127
Eliminated on disposals/write-off  H\& /5 $B i - (67,510) (5,097) (210) (72,817)
Exchange realignment BERAE - (505) (301) 1) (807)
At 31 December 2024 120245124318 557,785 202,916 122,142 1,109 883,952
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2024 120245128315 1,242,215 100,025 41,203 - 1,383,443
At 31 December 2023 720235128318 1,334,549 107,909 36,144 9 1,478,611
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. )% - B REBE -~

- continued

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged the
leasehold land and building with carrying amount of
HK$1,242,215,000 (2023: HK$1,334,549,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The items of property, plant and equipment above, after
taking into account the residual value, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 16.7% - 33.3%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 33.3%
Motor vehicles 18% - 20%
Leasehold land and building is located in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, certain shops
in Hong Kong and PRC did not perform as expected, the
management of the Group concluded there was an
indicator for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant shops. The
Group estimates the recoverable amount of these shops,
each represents an individual CGU, to which the asset
belongs when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of certain shops with
impairment indicators have been impaired in full as the
remaining lease term of these shops are to end around one
year from the end of the reporting period and hence would
not generate a net cash inflow in the future, accordingly.
Impairment loss HK$5,127,000 and HK$9,375,000 has
been recognised against the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2024,

[R2024F12H31H » ZAEBENHEE - #h
K 18 F BR @ 181,242,215,0007% 7T (2023
F 1 1,334,549,000/8 75) EHEIF 0 LUER
RYPAREEZIRITTRE o

At RFFEER ERYE HER
REBBEEUEREER T FRITE !

HE Lt RIEF iNGER L

HEMENESTE 16.7%—33.3%
R~ B RRE 9%—33.3%
A 18%—20%
HE T RIEFARES o

B E2024F12B31HIEEFEE » B KR
B&ETEMNRBRUWER AERE
EBEFHER RABBENR > IH
RS E BERREBENERE
BEEZAWESBETHES G ME
FEBEBMst W £5E 0 B AE B G
ZEEHEEMBZENBEEEEMN
2 A Ug el & %8 ©

REtEBNZIWREOSRBREER
BEEFEEEE -

RIBFHER BRERETRNET
[EEN RPN ERBARESO—F
[EM > ZERNEIS R BN R
BEEBEXRSRE ALEREKRBEEE
FIREMAFEE > WE E2024F12H31
HBEFE > ME- - KEBRZEUARER
BEEDNNIESEREEERERHIE
5,127,000/ 75 5 9,375,00078 7t °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

14.

P.116

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. EHEEE
Leased properties
HEME
HK$'000
FEIT
As at 31 December 2024 ##20245%12831H
Carrying amount IREE 374,882
As at 31 December 2023 ?2023%12H31H
Carrying amount IREE 276,269
For the year ended 31 December 2024 # E2024F12831HILEFE
Depreciation charge TEEHR 277,706
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) BEER 2 HERIE FIsE13) 9,375
For the year ended 31 December 2023  #;E2023F12A31HLLFE
Depreciation charge TEEHR 255,340

Addition to right-of-use assets resulting from new lease
entered or renewed amounted to HK$395,883,000 (2023:
HK$258,215,000).

For both years, the Group leases retail shops and office for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 10 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has extension options for certain leases in
Hong Kong. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. As at
31 December 2024, the potential exposures to these future
lease payments not included in lease liabilities for extension
options was HK$45,644,000 (2023: HK$25,724,000) because
the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise these options.
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ME] LB EMBAMBAEREEES
395,883,000 7t (20234 : 258,215,0007#
7o) °

RMEFE > AEBHETEEHRIPEA
ENUFEE HESNITLEEHRS
—E+F > BRIEEA THIFTM ZIER K&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued

Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payment that are based
on certain percentage sales and minimum annual lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term. The payment
terms are common in retail shops in the PRC where the
Group operates. The overall financial effect of using
variable payment terms is that higher rental costs are
incurred by shops with higher sales.

Variable lease payments during the year ended 31 December
2024 was HK$78,962,000 (2023: HK$75,706,000). The Group
regularly entered into short-term leases for rented premises.
As at 31 December 2024, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-
term lease expense, amounting to HK$20,951,000 (2023:
HK$27,928,000). In addition, expenses relating to rented
premises include expenses relating to variable lease payments
and rental expenses for contracts which the landlords have the
substantive right to substitute the rented premises were
HK$22,797,000 (2023: HK$25,562,000). Total cash outflow for
leases during the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to
HK$415,147,000 (2023: HK$380,021,000).

A7 o W B AR B

14. FREESE &

TEEHZAEEAEERAENRAE
FEREEEMR EHAHEREBREEZE
TEOLHERARBEEBRENR)
IRERRAEAEEETHEENTES
AR ERNEXMERNERY
BREARHESHEELEEENMEE
AR

HE2024F12B31HIEFENAEEER
T874578,962,00078 7T (20234 : 75,706,000
Brt) c AEBETH AR EY XTI EERAE
EojR20245F128310 ) se AR E4E S HLkT
HAFA ER9220,951,0008 70 (20234 :
27,928,000/ 7T) 2 B EHGHEE o Iib
SRR EYEBR Y (SR EE
ENRERzHIRETHEEYEAE
EEMERENEGNHEHSHEL) A
22,797,000 7t (20234 : 25,562,000
7T) c B E2024F128331HIEEE - HEZ
B M 4E%E4415,147,0008 7T (20234 :
380,021,000/87T) ©

15. INVENTORIES 15. &
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TET
Raw materials R Al 21,555 27,201
Goods held for resale F{EEER R 2,981,873 3,033,075
3,003,428 3,060,276
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

16, FEULFRIE « BE R A RIE

PREPAYMENTS
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E FET
Trade receivables from contracts KEEPREHNZESEWEIE
with customers 46,170 73,963
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBRERE (516) (526)
45,654 73,437
Other receivables, deposits and HAEWRRIE ~ & RFEN
prepayments MIB 77,339 93,319
Rental deposits MERE 97,382 91,636
PRC Value-added Tax (“VAT") FRE AT U el (E AR (TE{EFR )
recoverable 3,447 13,285
223,822 271,677
Analysed as: DA
Current T 116,704 177,341
Non-current - rental deposits JERE—HEeRE 97,382 91,636
Non-current - deposits paid for 3Fuu§j] U EBDZE ~ 123
acquisition of property, plant RECDTEE
and equipment 9,736 2,700
223,822 271,677

R2023F181H KRBT N ZE 5
P& FR T8 452,393,00078 7T ©

As at 1 January 2023, trade receivable from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$52,393,000.

ZEHE—RUBEREFABITHEM
TREEEINZ2ERARRtEHREN -
REERBTEHEZBKANIE—KE
RZIEEHA155E45H o

Retail sales are normally settled in cash or by credit cards
with the settlement from the corresponding banks or other
financial institutions within seven days. The credit term of
receivables from retail sales in department stores are
normally ranged between 15 to 45 days.

F22024F 128318 > F& Ux 6] 04,356,000
T (20234F © 27,265,000 7T) Bt AHE
HMEWERIE s B RFEMRE - HEFH
BHEYABEBEAERESEE

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
as at 31 December 2024 was rebate receivables of
HK$4,356,000 (2023: HK$27,265,000). The remaining
items are individually insignificant.
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HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. FEUAFRIE s e R FE(HRIE— 2

PREPAYMENTS - continued

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
before impairment presented based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates.

UTABEREZBUEARIERERAR
REZAH (EZEERAESTHRAE
) 25 ZRE DA ©

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T FA&TT

Within 30 days 30HA 44,540 73,036
31-60 days 31E60H 1,105 332
61-90 days 61290H - 13
Over 90 days HBiE90H 525 582
46,170 73,963

Included in the trade receivables balance were receivables
from department stores with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,466,000 (2023: HK$574,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 27.

BSEWARIBARY  BEREDEES
1,466,00078 7T (20234 : 574,000/ 7T) Z
EWBEERARE  REFRBEH ZF
MIBEBEEAR > MAEE M EELBRER
BEEE o

B RAEMBEWRIEZ BHEMTEZFE
YN MIEE27-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

17.

18.

P.120

TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY
OVER THREE MONTHS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2024, time deposits of HK$33,459,000
(2023: HK$160,898,000) with original maturity over three
months that carried interest at prevailing interest rate at
2.40% (2023: 3.00% to 4.50%) per annum. Cash and cash
equivalents carried interest at market rates which ranged
from 0.01% to 4.28% (2023: 0.01% to 4.50%) per annum.

Time deposits with original maturity over three months
and cash and cash equivalents that are not denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective group entities
are as follow:

17. R A =ER A LR ERTE

mERERREEEY

12024F12831H REIHBH A=A
DL+ B9 7 HB 77 733,459,000 7t (2023
F 1 160,898,00078 7o) ¥ IR1T FF) ZFE2.40%
(20234 : 3.00% E450%) 5t B o HE K&
RWEEEYETIZFEFF0.01% E4.28%
(20234 : 0.01% E£4.50%) 5t 8 °

WIRNSEBERZINEGEINEZR
BMBEA=ZERULNERERARRE
RBEEEMUWT

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET

HK$ BT 24,111 271

Macau Pataca (“MOP") BP9t (R TT) 18,473 32,629

Renminbi (“RMB") AR TAR®Y) 318,132 83,920

United States dollars ("USD") =7 (%)) 336 199

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. BT IERE &R

2024 2023

HKS'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Trade payables B 5 R RIE 64,582 122,063

Other payables and accrued charges Hfh &I IB K E & A 134,295 145,008
Singapore Goods and Services 00 352 7 o e AR 755 HE < AR 18

Tax ("GST") payables (M mBRFER) 726 790

PRC VAT payables rh B FE A R (B AR 2,772 1,198

202,375 269,059

Included in other payables and accrued charges as at 31
December 2024 were accrued bonus and incentive of
HK$22,310,000 (2023: HK$23,601,000), accrued
commission of HK$9,697,000 (2023: HK$9,497,000) and
accrued for renovation cost of HK$20,083,000 (2023:
HK$37,779,000).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. IR IEAREAER &
- continued
The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on BEEMMENRERAREEREHZ
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period are as Sz EREC AU T -
follows:
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHAIT
Within 30 days 30HA 64,131 113,080
31-60 days 31&260H 69 3,293
61-90 days 61290H 230 3,439
Over 90 days HBiEo0H 152 2,251
64,582 122,063
The Group normally receives credit terms granted by TEE—REREARTZEEHAI0
creditors of 30 to 60 days. £60H -
Trade payables that are not denominated in the functional TIEUBEEER 2 IEERHAEZE
currencies of the respective group entities are as follows: SEMREBEOT !
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
F#AT FAT
Euro ("EUR") Bt (TER7t)) = 86
MOP BPITT 611 2
RMB AR 1,160 -
usD ETT 235 13,819
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19.HE &R/
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEEaRE:
Within one year —FR 216,477 177,501
Within a period of more than —FEY FERBEmE
one year but not more than
two years 136,717 77,486
Within a period of more than MEU FBREBBEAF
two years but not more than
five years 55,916 49,640
Over five years EEME 3,223 -
412,333 304,627
Less: Amount due for settlement YA BRILER—F
within one year shown under WNERGEE 2 &
current liabilities (216,477) (177,501)
Amount due for settlement after SIAFERBEEL AR —F
one year shown under BEELEE T
non-current liabilities 195,856 127,126
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities ERNREEBENBEEEFNEXS
were 1.70% to 6.41% (2023: 1.14% to 6.41%) per annum. 1.70%ZE6.41% (20234 : 1.14%E6.41%) °
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BE2024F12831HIEFE
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. 549&8F
2024 2023
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
By 5% FE&T FET
Advances from customers BERB; (a) 20,502 5,837
Customer loyalty programmes  EE& B st 2l (b) 9,691 7,159
30,193 12,996
Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the BHNBEETER HAZ!-(%l R EBEIAR

Group's normal operating cycle and classified as current
liabilities.

As at 1 January 2023, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$13,380,000.

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue recognised in
the current year relating to contract liabilities at the beginning of the
year for advance from customers and customer loyalty programmes
were HK$5,837,000 and HK$7,159,000 (2023: HK$10,280,000 and
HK$3,100,000) respectively. The significant increase in contract
liabilities in the current year was mainly due to the increase in
advances from customers to purchase goods from the Group near
the year end as at 31 December 2024,

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group's customer loyalty programmes, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions. The fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and
the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed. As at 31 December 2024, the
consideration of HK$9,691,000 (2023: HK$7,159,000) was allocated
to the award credits.

The customer loyalty points granted during the year will expire at
the end of June in the following year. The expiry date has been

extended to 30 September 2024 in the current financial year.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED £ 28X %k EH IR 2 7

BERDESRBAERE

R2023FE181H » 648 1E 413,380,000
BT ©

BT

(a)

B E2024F12A3HIEFE ) BEYERTE
TRIERERSHANENEEBHNEASE
[ B B Uk & 49 B! 45,837,000 7T K 7,159,000
7 7T (20234F : 10,280,000 7T %3,100,00078
T AFEGHNEBEESEM HEEHN
FEE E2024F128310» FEENHIEA
MarEEHEE S RIGMATE o

ES0EE PR AR R B B EFRE
EZERENDARSGZTRRARS  EF
B ERAEZ A R EEFFTHES R AT
MYREZBETOR . PEEREZAE
ThBEZERTRMZBEZ R EEFE
1220245 12B31H PEEEREZNESR
9,691,000/ 7T (20234 : 7,159,000/ 7T) ©

or

ap

}

RAFERENERSHTE 2B B 1R %K
FRAEKEMm RAVKREE  JHBE
BE2024%9H30H °
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21.

22.

P.124

RIGHT TO RETURNED GOODS ASSET AND 21. i EEEEREBMARE
REFUND LIABILITIES
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FAET
Right to returned goods asset REREE 1,289 1,086
Refund liabilities arising from right B S#FFELZEREE
of return 2,267 1,712

The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return
products. At the point of sale, a refund liability and a right
to returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustments
to revenue and cost of sales are recognised for those
products expected to be returned. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of returns using the expected value method.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED
COMPANIES

The amounts due from related companies mainly represent
prepayment of operating expenses.

The amounts due to related companies mainly represent
the service charge payable to related companies. These
amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The related companies represent companies controlled by

a director or private trusts of which another director is one
of the eligible beneficiaries.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
BE2024F12831HIEFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23, IR IEFRIE
The following are the deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised by the Group and the movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

FEERIZELNBEE (BR) hH
REFERBEFEZEEHUNF !

Accelerated
Reinstatement tax  Right-of-use Lease
provision  depreciation assets liabilities Total
ERRE MEREHRE ERERE fgaf EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2023 12023F181H - (4,036) (17,613) 17,613 (4,036)
Credit (charge) to profitor loss  FERBZ:TA (05)
for the year - 670 2,335 (2,335) 670
Exchange realignment ERHE - (90) - - (90)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A318 - (3,456) (15278) 15,278 (3,456)
Credit (charge) to profitor loss  FAER Bt A (15)
for the year 3,844 3457 (8412) 8412 7,301
Exchange realignment ERAE - 28 - - 28
At 31 December 2024 12024128310 3,844 29 (23,690) 23,690 3,873
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEBINN G EHBRAREMS > & T

statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

BEEMBEEREBBETFRE - UTH
FLRA BRI S VIR IE MR IBAS BREY DA

purpose:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TEBT
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE E 5,094 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEaE (1,221) (3,456)
3,873 (3,456)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$36,203,000 (20283:

RERPBEEER > AEBEEA R HIKH
AR AR A 2 R B AR AR TR 5 $849.36,203,000

HK$42,801,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of such
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses incurred by
subsidiaries of HK$36,203,000 (2023: HK$42,801,000) that
will expire in the coming years (please see the table
below). Tax losses of HK$Nil (2023: HK$5,999,000) have
been expired during the year.

7 7T (20234 : 42,801,00078 7T) ° H Y ok
R FHREUTER > B E SR
SIEIETRIE o MY B~ BT E A H RS
RMEBEBEERBRRAXHBERERZ
36,203,0007% 7T, (20234 : 42,801,0007% 7T)
ZEBEBETR - FREERZRIEBEIE
AEHETT (20234 : 5,999,000 7T) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE2024F12H31HILEFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued 23. IRIEFRIE — 4=

PRI RGN Z KRB AR AR E

The unused tax losses available for offset against future

profits are analysed as follows: DAT -
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAETT
Will expire on: BTy EERER
31 December 2025 20259 12H31H 772 4,748
31 December 2026 2026F12H31H 18,796 20,176
31 December 2027 2027%F12831H 4,024 4,073
31 December 2028 2028%F12831H 5,275 5,275
31 December 2029 2029%F12831H 2,311 2,311
31 December 2030 2030%F12H31H 1,188 1,188
32,366 37,771
Unrecognised tax losses that may be FJ#[REA4E & >
carried forward indefinitely FEBRIEE 1B 3,837 5,030
36,203 42,801
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. g7
Number of ordinary shares Share capital
LR EE gz
2024 2023 2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Issued and fully paid BETRERE
At beginning of yearand at ~ RENREXR
the end of year 6,779,458,129 6,779,458,129 3,484,152 3,484,152
25. RESERVES 25. (i

(a) EHFEEERRALATAAHBERLTRK
1 120084 72 Bt 32 i £ 75 T 48 8 <
EERBCZEREASE (EBE
#H1) FREEZE -

(a) Merger reserve arose from the group reorganisation
scheme (the "Group Reorganisation”) undertaken by
the Company to rationalise the structure of the Group
in preparation for the listing of the Company'’s shares

on the Stock Exchange in 2008.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

25. RESERVES - continued

(b) Other reserve represented the aggregate amount of:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the difference between the nominal value of share
capital and the amount due to Emperor W&/
Holdings capitalised for issue of 344 ordinary shares
of US$1 each in a subsidiary of HK$343,997,000
prior to the Group Reorganisation;

the capital contribution of HK$6,000 by Emperor
W&J Holdings in Emperor Watch and Jewellery
Company Limited (subsequently renamed as
Prime Sharp Limited, a then fellow subsidiary of
the Company) ("EWJCL") prior to the Group
Reorganisation;

promissory notes in aggregate of HK$373,006,000
issued in exchange for shares in the subsidiaries
as a part of Group Reorganisation;

the excess of the consideration paid for acquisition
of additional interest in a subsidiary from a non-
controlling shareholder over the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest of HK$927,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2010;

the shortfall of the consideration paid for
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
from a non-controlling interest of HK$4,063,000
during the year ended 31 December 2010;

the reversal of reserve of HK$295,000 arising
from the deregistration of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December
2011; and

(vii) the reversal of HK$28,000 and HK$5,000 arising

from the deregistration of a wholly owned
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively.

Capital reserve represented the excess of the value of
net assets acquired over purchase consideration paid to
EWIJCL by Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK) Company
Limited in 1987.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED £ 28X %k EH IR 2 7

A7 o W B AR B

25. [#fE—2&

(b) HffEHRE T

(c)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

.

TH 2 #8%8 .

REBSHAR > RAEELEEMS
BEEFREERMBEBENEG
(17344 B A B SR EET
ETEERRM 2BNER
343,997,000 7T ;

HEERKEERTEREAER
HESEFKERRLRE (HE
8% Prime Sharp Limited> Z8 4
KRB ZzRBRMERST)
(TEWICL)) Z HE6,000 7T ;

EREEEAZE D LIBRM
%/&Tzﬁyfﬁﬁﬁéﬂ‘ﬁzﬁ’ﬂi}ﬁ
5 373,006,000 7T ;

6 — 2 FE PR AR AR BR W B — B BT /B8
NEREINER 2 B REBBIBEIE
RS R Y B E2010F 128 31
H Ik F E 2~ Bk @ {§927,000/8

7T 5

REE2010F12831H IEEE M
—ZIFERETWE BB A
BEEINERZENREREESEE
4,063,000 7T ;

HE2011FE12B31HILEEE > 7l
fBrEEM—MIEEE Mﬂ%’&?ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ
[0] 2 {#15295,0007 7T ;

(vii) & F2015%F12831H k20144

EREBEREEERKE (B

128318 L FE » FIFReE M —E
2EM B A M7 R #[E]128,000
/%75&5,000/%75 °

B) AR

NEIP1987FEINBEEWICL 2 B EFE
HBRABEREBZE D o
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26.

27.

P.128

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents, lease liabilities and equity attributable to
the owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital
and risks associated with the capital, and will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as raising of new bank borrowings.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26.

27.

BAERER

FEBEEEAUEREEANSERLT
AR E  AREREBILEBRIREGE
FaRREKRERAOER - FEBZEEE
SREg BT F AL H ol o

FEBZEAEREERERETEE
Y HEERUKRETABERS ANELED
(BEEEHTRERER) -

EFTEHRNERGEE - MR &
EEZEEANAREREBER > LiKE
BT - RIBERMN REERIRITHEE
FERIEEREE -

ERTH

2024 2023
HKS$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FBT
Financial assets THEE
At amortised cost ¥4 58 B AN 1,097,211 811,986
Financial liabilities THEE
At amortised cost Yo 8 3 pY, 2 96,456 145,126

The Group's financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits, time
deposits with original maturity over three months,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to related companies and
lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in their respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Market risk

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to floating-rate bank balances (see
note 17 for details). The Group cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates on bank balances. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and
outlook. The management will review the floating
rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range. The Directors consider that the exposure of
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating-
rate bank balances is insignificant.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's activities are exposed primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

The Group has certain sales and purchases
transactions, intra-group balances, time deposits
with maturity over three months and bank
balances denominated in HK$, MOP, USD, RMB,
EUR, Singapore Dollars (“SGD") and Malaysian
Ringgit (“MYR") which are the currencies other
than the functional currencies of respective group
entities. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movements of the
foreign currency rates. The Directors conduct
periodical review of foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arise.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. EMTH-&

i 453 JaL B —

Market risk - continued

(i) Foreign currency risk - continued (i) HNEE & s —42
MREEREAR > NEBUERER
MEEE BN EEIEN ST
EERERE (BREEMER

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities, including inter-group
balances at the end of the reporting period that

are denominated in currencies other than the HEWNT :
functional currency of the relevant entities are as
follow:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Assets B5E
Third parties -y
HK$ BT 24,111 271
MOP JAPS T 18,473 32,629
MYR BRAEELH 14 14
RMB AR 318,132 83,920
SGD Fnig T 21 21
usbD E7T 336 199
Inter-group balances EEHEEER
MYR BERELES T 5,482 5,830
Liabilities af&
Third parties -y
EUR Bl - 86
MOP BT 611 2
RMB AR 1,160 -
usD ETT 235 13,819
Inter-group balances EERE R
HK$ BT 855,895 858,395
SGD HrNIE T 154,147 112,573
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &M TH-&

Market risk - continued b 4% B B — &

(i) INERBR—4

(ii) Foreign currency risk - continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group's
sensitivity to a 7% (2023: 9%) increase in the
functional currencies of the relevant group
entities, relative to respective foreign currencies.
The sensitivity analysis of the Group also includes
foreign currency exposure on inter-group
balances 7% (2023: 9%) is the sensitivity rate
used in the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only foreign
currencies denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 7% (2023: 9%) change in the foreign
currency rates.

If the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities strengthen/weaken 7% against respective
foreign currencies, post-tax profit for the year would
have decreased/increased by HK$15,033,000 and
increased/decreased by HK$58,717,000 (2023:
post-tax profit for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$7,376,000 and increased/
decreased by HK$72,530,000) as a result of change
in foreign currency rates of third parties’ assets and
liabilities, and inter-group balances respectively.

SBE 7T

TOIBELE e i A B ¥ A8
MEBRESR2NEERREEZ
INEEF+7% (20234 © 9%) Z BURK
Eoe REBZBREDNITE
EEBRERITIAREZINER
B o 8K FE tb E7% (20234 -
9%)73*‘@%:)&%@5@%7%@

BRED $ﬁ1¥@%u%ﬁ¥nu%ﬁz
EEE TRERBERIZT%
(20234F : 9%) I & B X B E) R
BiE o

WEEEEE S TS
BB ZINEFHE B2 ET% - EEE\
FZAANLTZEERABRBINGE
K REBBEHESE > KEE
2 BIREEFNEDRIRL, M
15,033,0007% 7T K 1% 0 R b
58,717,000/ 7T (20234 | ZEE
BrfR & w2 g m
7,376,000 T K& & m R b
72,530,00078 7T) ©
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

P.132

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk
exposures are primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, rental deposits, time deposits with
original maturity over three months and bank balances.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about
the Group's credit risk management, maximum credit
risk exposures and the related impairment assessment,
if applicable, are summarised as below:

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed annually. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong, which
accounted for 74% (2023: 66%) and 19% (2023: 20%)
of the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2024,
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &M TH-&

Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

Trade receivables - continued

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances.
Except for items that are subject to individual
evaluation, the remaining trade receivables are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to the external credit ratings/Group's
internal credit ratings/past-due amounts/repayment
frequency after due dates. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Other receivables, rental deposits

The Directors have taken into account internal credit
rating based on the historical default experience and
credit quality and various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information, as appropriate, in
estimating the probability of default of each of the
other financial assets occurring within their respective
loss assessment time horizon. They are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to
the external credit ratings/Group’s internal credit
ratings/past-due amounts/repayment frequency after
due dates. For the purpose of impairment assessment,
the ECL of these financial assets is measured under
12-month ECL. No ECL allowance has been
recognised as the amount is not considered to be
material.

Time deposits with original maturity over three
months and bank balances

The credit risk on time deposits with original maturity
over three months and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

15 B /o B2 R it (B 5F 1 — 4
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

P.134

Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

Time deposits with original maturity over three
months and bank balances - continued

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

27. &M TR-#

15 B /o g R it (B 5F 1 — 4

IHA=EA XN ELNTEHRF
)\E’ZfE'fT EER 42

BrEAHBBABEENFRNIRETH
RBBETHEPEERRI $$l

WEEREMEREREERR
AEBAIEERRFREB TTE
Jl\‘ }:‘y .

rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

REBEETE R B S WA HittEMEE

Low risk The counterparty is reputable and has a low risk of default ~ Lifetime ECL-not 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired

Rk RBENRZHFHZENRRRRE %%ﬁ%1§%ﬁ 12EABREERE
Bl g iAkEmRIE EEERE

Watch list Debtor is reputable but with past-due amounts and Lifetime ECL-not 12-month ECL
frequently repays in full after due dates credit-impaired

BEREE REEACERY MR THEERNERN LHENEERE 12ERRHEERE
BHEA -REEAHE

Doubitful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL-not Lifetime ECL-not
initial recognition through information developed credit-impaired credit-impaired
internally or external resources

R REABEAZER ISR EERR LHREMEERE %%ﬁ%%é%ﬁ
BEARHESE LURBE G —-BEEHE BEERHE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL-credit-  Lifetime ECL-credit-

impaired impaired
B8 EREBTREELREENE %%ﬁ%1§%ﬁ %%ﬁ%{ﬁﬁﬁ
BEEHE BEEHE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off  Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

i ERBBTREAOHRENHEER IR EE IR L

FEETEBRIBEFE
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. &M TH-—#&
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1SEE R BTG4
- continued
Time deposits with original maturity over three FEBEA=BAULNERE
months and bank balances - continued R RITHEBR — 42
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRENAEESMEE (BETHE
Group's financial assets which are subject to ECL HEEHEEBIM FTEEREZEER
assessment: i
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or Gross carrying amount
rating rating lifetime ECL REYE
p/3:11 R +ZEAH%ZH
EEIE GEIE FHEHGHE 2024 2023
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT TERT TET
Financial assets at amortised cost
BBHENTTRZEMEE
Trade receivables 16 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 45,654 73,437
(not credit-impaired)
B2 RIIE AEA (M zE1) LHEREESS
(BEERB)
Credit-impaired 516 526
BEERE
Other receivables 16 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 4,356 27,265
HESHIE ~ER (Mzx2) 12BABHREERE
Rental deposits 16 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 97,382 91,636
HeEksE AEA (MzE2) 12ERBNEERE
Time deposits with original maturity 17 A orabove  (Note 3) 12-month ECL 33,459 160,898
over three months
REIMBA=ERANLNERER AN L (HEE3) 12ERBIAEERE
Bank balances 17 Aorabove (Note3) 12-month ECL 909,300 450,374
RITEER AL (HEE3) 12ERBREERE
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

Time deposits with original maturity over three
months and bank balances - continued

Notes:

1. Trade receivables primarily consist of department store sales,
credit card sales and e-payment sales platforms such as
Alipay or WeChat Pay. The Directors monitor their balances on
an ongoing basis. Trade receivables in connection with
invoices settled through credit card of HK$9,243,000 (2023:
HK$19,069,000) or e-payment platforms of HK$2,336,000 (2023:
HK$7,223,000) are assessed individually and with high credit
rating and no past due history. Trade receivables with significant
balances in connection with department stores of HK$34,591,000
(2023: HK$47,671,000) are assessed individually. In determining
the ECL for certain trade receivables in connection with
department stores, the management of the Group has taken into
account the historical default experience, the change in the
global default rate and GDP. The management of the Group
considers some of these assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of reputable
department stores. In this regard, the Directors consider that the

Group's credit risk is insignificant.

2. In determining the ECL for other receivables and rental
deposits, the management of the Group has taken into
account the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, and concluded that no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition is noted and risk
of default is insignificant, and therefore, no impairment has

been recognised.

3. The Group measures the loss allowance on liquid funds equal
to 12-month ECL. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because cash are placed with reputable banks with external
credit rating of at least "A" assigned by an international credit-

rating agency or state owned.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

A7 o W B AR B

27. £MTHR-#&

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Time deposits with original maturity over three

months and bank balances - continued

There has been no change in the estimation techniques
or significant assumptions made throughout the year.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables:

Movement in the allowance for credit losses:

15 B /o B2 R it (B 5F 1 — 4
REFES=ZERULNEREF
B RITAE R — A

RAFELENB A RN EERR

n
ax °

TRETEMEZBWHIAEDHNE
HITARlE EEEES !

EEEREHENEEER

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

2HITERAEEESIE

(BIEEREE)

HKS$'000

F#ET

As at 1 January 2023 $22023%F181H 538
Exchange realignment PE 50 58 & (12)
As at 31 December 2023 [12023%F12H31H 526
Exchange realignment P oA (10)
As at 31 December 2024 §%20245F12H31H 516
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

P.138

Liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company. In the management
of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents adequate to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
lease liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and
lease liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest cash flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.

27. &M THR-#

B H = bR

AEBZABETNIBALTLEE
EEZYER - REERDEZA
B FEEEEREFENNREE
RBEFEYKT > BN RERE
HBRBRRERERDTE -

TERFINEAEESREENEES
BEREZEERHAZRNGENE
Hle TRODBEFEEAIREKE
mZzEFOMRREREEREER
BRZAMBHFEEAER/E - TX
BHEAMNEREEHEEMNE - 7F
FARZHBIRTRME » KRN
BB E R ZF KRR o

Carrying
amount
Weighted ~ Repayable ~ Morethan  More than atthe
average ondemand  1yearbut 2years but Total  end of the
effective ~ orwithin  lessthan  less than Over undiscounted  reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5years 5years  cash flows period
BEX KR
MiEFsy gy 1ENE 2FNE RERE RERER
-1k 1Eh B0 EOMsE  SENE g ZREE
%  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TR AR AR TER FER FiEn
At 31 December 2024 120245128318
Trade and other payables A RAMEMNTE 81,270 - - 81,20 81,270
Amounts due to RABEATNE
related companies - 15,186 - - - 15,186 15,186
Lease liabilities fEak 5.08 231,549 142,779 58,210 5,231 437,775 412,333
328,005 142,779 58,210 5,231 534,231 508,789
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 27. M TH-#
Liquidity risk - continued BB R E &
Carrying
amount
Weighted Repayable More than More than atthe
average  ondemand Tyearbut — 2yearshut Total end of the
effective or within less than lessthan  undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years cash flows period
ED RS
g3 EEY 1N 2E REng  FEREX
R 1ER BhpoE {BOR5E e KRB
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TiEn TEn
At 31 December 2023 1420235128318
Trade and other payables A REMENTE - 140613 - - 140613 140613
Amounts due to RIBELTNE
related companies - 4513 - - 4513 4513
Lease liabilities HEaR 504 188,294 81,623 52,680 322,597 304,627
333420 81,623 52,680 467,723 449,753
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERA REBEBRANRGEYH
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at KRR iRzEMEERETMEE
amortised cost in the consolidated financial ZIREERFEEZ ANEBES o

statements approximate to their fair values.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 2 22§ BkBEHE A F P139

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o M5 AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 28. BN KT
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of BERBEECITANERRN
acquisition of property, plant and LEMBmREEZ
equipment contracted for but not ME KRR EZ
provided in the consolidated BAREZ
financial statements 8,947 6,831
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. fERe RESTEY
The Shareholders passed an ordinary resolution at the IR ER2018FES5H23H £ 172 KA K
annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May REFAG BB -—BHEZERZE #t
2018 to approve the adoption of a share option scheme of ERW A T —IBERESTE (THERRE
the Company (“Share Option Scheme”). i DE
A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out as BRESE ZBEHIINT
follows:
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate EAEERELRS] R KHE =i
talented eligible participants to strive for future ZEBRZ2HEAARERZHEHE
development and expansion of the Group. RRERME ] o
Eligible participants include employees (whether full- EERZ2EEBRERE (BmA2H
time or part time, including any Executive Director, FFE > BIEEAITES  FFIT
Non-executive Director or Independent Non-executive EEYEILFENTES) REMEE
Director) and such other eligible participants. B2EE o
i. As at 23 May 2018 (i.e. the date of passing the i FR2018F5H23H (BD i@ I8 X 4K
resolution for adoption of the Share Option BRESTENARARR El ) &
Scheme) and as at 31 December 2024; 202412831 H : 687,308,812
687,308,812 shares. i o
ii. Percentage of the issued shares that it represents ii. FR2024F12H31EEE TR
as at 31 December 2024: 10.14%. Mz BT D £10.14%0
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 20, BBRG it —2

i. in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved by
the Shareholders; and

ii. options granted to eligible participant in excess of
the 1% limit must be approved by the Shareholders.

At any time from the date of grant of the option to
such a date determined by the board of Directors but
in any event not exceeding 10 years from the date of
grant.

No vesting period unless otherwise determined by the
board of Directors.

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(ii) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of
the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
Directors (subject to adjustment) and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the share as
stated in daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date; and (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date.
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29.

30.

P.142

SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Approximately 3 years (expiring on 22 May 2028).

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023, no option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or remained outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the "ORSO"
Scheme) and a MPF Scheme established under the Hong
Kong MPF Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of independent trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior
to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to
the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to join
the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group makes
mandatory and voluntary contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which mandatory contribution
is matched by the employee. The maximum amount of
mandatory contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per each
employee by month and voluntary contribution is limited
to HK$5,000 depends on the staff position by month.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions

from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee’s basic salary.

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED # 2 x kB HR A

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§

29.

30.

RelefEstEl—=

#4934 (7R2028FE5822H @im) ©

P& E2024F12H31H &2023F 12431
HIEFEE  iEEREAREBRES
B~ 17 SFEHRITE ©

BHREFE

AEBE2HARBEET AR = RKTEEE
ST 2 R E AR T 2 (THE 28 K 5 81 %
il 5t 81 1) K2 522000128 iRiIBEH Baa sl
MABEEHMIIZBESE - %%
R EERAERCEEPHEE B
BIUREAZER ZEESFR LRI
BELTEF B2 AR RAKTEES
SEICEETEELEY B EEMKS
EEGIETE B ERESE > MAAA
FL2000F12B 1B 2 BN AR E B 25
BERB2MAaEETE -

BiEoBRmREMEERARKORZ
BIKEAN R AIEAEBRBZSERRIETE
ZHEREAFESZMHM HETRMH
MEHEBARHBERKE > K&
B PR A (H AR A 12 B 2 W A RRAT R o

MBREBZMEMES » ZEB B X
stEIfEH s R BREMR > #HRRAE
B LB A Z5% % F 5 Gt HERE
BEZHRBE-—R - SURERSEFIE
HREEEAEH1,5008 T > MEBHMR
EPR#A5,00087T > RETHAIME °

BERAFTEZETHRBEEERETEER
EHREERM Z5%ATEZERHEM -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&r o RS i 2 M B
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued 30. iBAfEFIGETE]— &

The eligible employees of the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia are members of
pension schemes operated by respective local
governments. The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
contribute a certain percentage ranging from 38% to 44%
of the relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to
the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The subsidiary
in Macau is required to contribute MOP60 for every
employee per month. The subsidiary in Singapore is
required to contribute 5% to 20% of the employee’s
monthly gross salary while the subsidiary in Malaysia is
required to contribute 11% to 13% of the employee’s
monthly gross salary. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contribution under the schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$28,041,000 (2023: HK$26,976,000) represents
contributions, payable to those plans by the Group at the
rate specified in the rules of the plans.

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the
Group has the obligation to pay LSP to qualifying
employees in Hong Kong upon retirement, subject to a
minimum of 5 years employment period, based on the
following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of employment)
X 2/3 X Years of service.

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while the
amount of long service payment shall not exceed
HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a post-
employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group's MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/
negative returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting LSP
payable to an employee.

RAB)RAE - BFI FNKEERA
GMBARZEAEKEEARSERK
NEEBZEKSFHEIRE  PRZHB
REBRBEHEEFEEBERAZET
B (1 F38% E44%) s i FRKkSE
FEMER AEHNREEES BN
BERABIESRME R REESHARC0ER
oMK B A B EAEE B &
SEEEH5% E20% 7 > 0 55 2 78 o0 bt
BRI EAMESUEERFHEEEHI1%
F13% MR XEEBARRAKEF 2
2WE—EXARBEEHTBHER

B 18 I HE 5% BY 4B B 228,041,000 JT
(20234 : 26,976,00078 TT) 7 7 & & 1%
ZESERUMBRENEXERZES
BEH AR ©

REEBREREFEEG (F57F)  RENKE
AEBEEFATEHRANEEBETIX
TRERE (RRE) FEREELSEN
FLEHAR - WL T AN E ¢

RE—BRANITE (ERMEALZA)
X2/3 X lRIBEIR o

% —188 0 TE LR A22500% 7 -
05 AR & B9 5 26 13 18 18390,00038 7T ©
BEEBEREAEERESENHE
TR -

tESh » IRF1995F BIBAVGRFIE AR
STEMRB) REET UM B AEEBRE
ENPETEM L REERE4QE
HARKHEEDE TXHRRE -

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 2 2§23 Bk BEHE A F P143

2024 ANNUAL REPORT £E $§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

;\T

o 5 i R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F 128318 IEEE

30.

P.144

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June
2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers' mandatory MPF contributions to
offset the LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect on
the Transition Date (i.e., 1 May 2025). Separately, the
Government of the HKSAR has approved a subsidy
scheme to assist employers for a period of 25 years after
the Transition Date on the LSP payable by employers up to
a certain amount per employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group's mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns, after the Transition Date can continue to be
applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but
are not eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP
obligation. On the other hand, the accrued benefits derived
from the Group's voluntary contributions made pre-, on or
post-transition can continue to be used to offset pre-and
post-transition LSP. Furthermore, the LSP obligation before
the Transition Date will be grandfathered and calculated
based on the Last monthly wages immediately preceding
the Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.
The Amendment Ordinance has no impact on the Group's
LSP liability with respect to employees that participate in
MPF Scheme and the relevant accounting policy is
disclosed in note 3.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 1. BER R
The terms and balances with some related companies at RERIBER 2 & T B ERQBME R AR
the end of the reporting periods are set out in consolidated YN AR B MR R I EE220

statements of financial position and note 22,

During the year, other than the arrangements with and RERN - BRNEIOMIEENHEESE RAE
compensation to the Directors and key management BTEEEBEAESTUNTHROREE
personnel of the Group disclosed in note 9, the Group had HHMEIN FEFELEFERF 22N
the following transactions with related parties: e
2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHAIT
(1) Sales of goods to Directors, their HEEmTEE - KEZ
close family members and related TR REERE
companies (notes a and b) (M 5F a K b) 3,015 2,108
(2) Cost of consigned items paid or B SENFRAESDN
payable to a related party (note d) HEM MM A (M5 d) 1,440 -
(8) Electricity and air-conditioning BN KREMNFREEAT
expenses paid and payable to related Z B & & ZTEHE S H
companies (notes a and b) GEEY4) 299 278
(4) Service charge in respect of B RENTREART
information system and ERREBEMRRKRITHIIE
administrative work paid and payable Z RFSE (MiztaK&b)
to related companies (notes a and b) 17,457 17,605
(5) Advertising expenses paid and BN KEMNFREEAT
payable to related companies Z2EEMRAE (Wstakb)
(notes a and b) 1,036 1,034
(6) Financial advisory fee paid and B R BN T — R E
payable to a related company REIZ M FBEREE R
(notes a and b) (MtzEa R b) 456 447
(7) Purchase of furniture from arelated BHRIESEEXREAE
company (notes a and b) (Ft5F a Kz b) - 375
(8) Referral fee paid and payable to BN RENFREES N
related companies (notes a and d) EEEA (fYstafkd) 34 5
(9) Interest expenses on lease liabilities MARIEASEH ZHE
to related companies (note a) BEMERY (Hsta) 4,868 1,587
(10) Variable lease payments to related RFAEASFHAAE
companies (notes a and c) MEMH (Miskakc) 2,325 1,617
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31.

P.146

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

As at 31 December 2024, deposits paid to related
companies amounting to HK$13,618,000 (20283:
HK$16,679,000) was included in rental deposits under
non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had recognised lease
liabilities of approximately HK$75,675,000 (2023:
HK$53,213,000) for the leases with related companies.

Notes:

(a) The related companies are controlled by a Director or private trusts

of which another Director is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

(b) These transactions are connected transactions exempt from
announcement, reporting and independent shareholders’

requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

(c) The expenses paid are in relation to the tenancy agreements
entered into with the related companies of the Company. Some of
these transactions are disclosed continuing connected transactions
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company
which details are disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under "Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

(d) The details of arrangement are disclosed under the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and
Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.
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32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING N.MEEFHEEZARHIER

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TR A EBEMETEBMEENEE
arising from financing activities including both cash and ZHAB(ANKELEREEIFREE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing e MEBEESMELENEEARNAE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future BiRaREnEaxTPToEAME T
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated BREMENREREXIERKRRERE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable Total
HEaR RITEE EIRa 1t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THET THET
As at 1 January 2023 K2023F181H 300,100 - - 300,100
Net cash used in financing RMEREREMAZ
cash flows Re P8 (250,825) - (93,557) (344,382)
New leases entered or AUNBEZMEE (D)
renewed (Note) 247,156 - - 247,156
Lease modified/terminated MEEN/RIE (1,626) - - (1,626)
Interest expenses FMERZ 10,228 - - 10,228
Dividend recognised BREREE - - 93,557 93,557
Exchange realignment LR (406) - - (406)
As at 31 December 2023 12023%12831H 304,627 - - 304,627
Net cash used in financing REREREMAZ
cash flows Fe%8E (292,437) (587) (82,031) (375,055)
New leases entered or STURNBEZMAE ()
renewed (Note) 387,831 - - 387,831
Lease modified/terminated BEBH/ KL (9,960) . - (9,960)
Interest expenses FERY 23,532 587 - 24,119
Dividend recognised BERREE - - 82,031 82,031
Exchange realignment ERAE (1,260) - - (1,260)
As at 31 December 2024 12024%12831H 412,333 - - 412,333
Note: Wizt

During the years ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into new
and renewal of lease agreements and recognised HK$395,883,000 (2023:
HK$258,215,000) of right-of-use assets and HK$387,831,000 (2023:

HK$247,156,000) of lease liabilities respectively.

(20234 : 247,156,000/ 70) WIHE & & -
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 3. AT ZMBIRRBRR S
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2024 2023
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries PRBRABEZEE 2,753,273 2,714,664
Amount due from a subsidiary [FE Ly — FET Bft /&8 /22 Bl 7R I8 2,263,843 2,142,356
5,017,116 4,857,020
Current assets TRENE E
Amount due from a subsidiary e s — FET Bft /&8 /2 Bl /1B 82,031 93,557
Deposits and prepayments B MTEMMRIE 564 563
Cash and cash equivalent RERIREEEY 494 257
83,089 94,377
Current liabilities ik 2 R=R |
Other payables and accrued charges E & (s 7018 & fE 51 & B 428 415
Amount due to subsidiaries FE AT — B I /&8 A B RUIA 125,403 88,041
125,831 88,456
Net current (liabilities) assets wE (AR EEFE (42,742) 5,921
Net assets BEFE 4,974,374 4,862,941
Capital and reserve BERRE#E
Share capital [N 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserve 5] 1,490,222 1,378,789
Total equity Mg 4,974,374 4,862,941
The Company's statement of financial position was AT Z BB AR IR KR IL202553H20H
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of KRESFHERERENE THTIE
Directors on 20 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf ERKREE
by:
CINDY YEUNG FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA
mER SoEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
£ £
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE OF THE COMPANY - continued

QA
A a

A 15 i R B

33. BT ZMBIRRIBR KT

Retained

profits

REEH

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2023 12023%F181H 1,277,112
Profit and total comprehensive income F a2 E WA AR EE

for the year 195,234

Final dividend paid for 2022 2022 F EfTAREARE (42,033)

Interim dividend paid for 2023 2023F EfHHIRE (51,524)

At 31 December 2023 122023%F12H531H 1,378,789
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRN REE WA AREE

for the year 193,464

Final dividend paid for 2023 2023F EffREARE (37,965)

Interim dividend paid for 2024 2024F ENHFHKE (44,066)

At 31 December 2024 §£2024512H31H 1,490,222

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. TEMEABZHS

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

registration/

20244 FK2023%F12H31H » KA R E

EWNBARZEFIBUT

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of issued
share capital held

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital by the Group  Principal activities
g4 Ve BRITEER TEERE
MEARRE SEMA Bx ERES BREITREZIEH FEXRH
2024 2023

Direct subsidiaries

EEMEAR

Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) Hong Kong ("HK")  HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited 58 18T REER

HEEGHGE (TE) ERERLH

Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited HBREUHE 1E7T KREER

HEBHKE (PE) ZRERAT
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. T EMBASIZEE—#&

P.150

- continued

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of issued

share capital held

Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
Ayl Ve BE&TLiER *EEFE
MEARRE EEMA Bx ERES BREITRAZIEH FEXRH
2024 2023
Direct subsidiaries - continued
EEMBAR—Z
Emperor Watch & Jewellery BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
(HK & Macau) Holdings Limited EBRUHE 1ETT REER
HEEHGE (BR) ERERLD
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Overseas HK HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited /A 187 KREER
HEBEKEBIMNERBRAT
Indirect subsidiaries
RERBAR
Emperor Watch & Jewellery HK HK$100 100% 100% Sales of watches &
(HK) Company Limited 5 1008 7T jewellery
HERRFHKE (FB) BRAT HEBRNIKE
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Malaysia MYR3,000,000 100% 100% Sales of jewellery
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. EXRAD 3,000,000 & A HEKE
L5
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Singapore SGD1,000,000 100% 100% Sales of watches &
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. S IIb 1,000,000%7 103K ¢ jewellery
HEEBRNIKE
EWJ Macau Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100% Sales of watches &
EW)RPIERAE BT 25,0002 7t jewellery
HEBRNIKE
Gold Pleasure Investment Limited HK HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
SERERRALT BB 10,0008 7T MERE
HEEFHE R BERAF! PRC HK$280,000,000 100%  100% Sales of watches &
H 280,000,000 7T jewellery
HEBRIKE

# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise.
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. T EMIBASIZHEE—#&

35.

- continued

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries of the Group will be of
excessive length and therefore the list above contains only
the particulars of direct subsidiaries or indirect subsidiaries
which principally affect the results or assets of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2024, the Group successfully
placed 477,250,000 shares (“Placing Share(s)") to
institutional investors who were independent third parties
at HK$0.167 per Placing Share, which represented
approximately 6.6% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Placing Shares. The net proceeds are approximately
HK$79.3 million.

Subsequent to 31 December 2024, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with a related party to
acquire a property at an estimated consideration of
approximately HK$79.8 million. As at the date of this
annual report, the acquisition has not yet been completed
and is subject to satisfaction of certain conditions
precedent. Details were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 February 2025.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FaNc sy YA
For the year ended 31 December
HE12B31HLLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$S'000 HKS$S'000 HKS$'000
F#ET F#Ex FEx F#ExT F#ET
RESULT Ef
Revenue A 2,626,609 3,926,608 3,684,261 4,823,223 5,230,331
Gross Profit EH 840,064 1,229,505 1,177,262 1,450,281 1,480,943
Profit before taxation bR AR A A 34,796 256,269 277,244 367,732 317,038
Taxation R1a (803) (561,574) (55,119) (68,513) (60,301)
Profit for the year KABIHEB A
attributable to owners FEAL A
of the Company 33,993 204,695 222,125 299,219 256,737

As at 31 December
128318
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$S'000 HKS$S'000 HKS'000
F#ET F#&T FH&T F#E&T F#ET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER&®E

Total assets MBS E 5,773,431 5,350,255 5,381,829 5,708,364 5,942,355
Total liabilities S =R (1,224,313) (629,465) (536,770) (661,676) (728,265)
Net Assets BEEFE 4,549,118 4,720,790 4,845,059 5,046,688 5,214,090
Equity attributable to KRBHEB A

owners of the Company 1ok 18 75 e

and total equity ym e 25 4,549,118 4,720,790 4,845,059 5,046,688 5,214,090
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